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GENERAL COUNSEL'S EXHIBIT No. 1-H

United States of America

Before the National Labor Relations Board

Nineteenth Region

Case No. 19-CA-1374— Mountain Pacific, Seattle,

and Tacoma Chapters of the Associated Gen-

eral Contractors of America, Inc.,

and

Case No. 19-CB-424— International Hodcarriers,

Building and Common Laborers Union of

America, Local No. 242, APL-CIO,

and

Case No. 19-CB-445—Western Washington District

Council of International Hodcarriers, Building

and Common Laborers Union of America,

APL-CIO,

and

Cyrus Lewis, Charging Party.

CONSOLIDATED COMPLAINT

V.

In the year of 1955, the AGC Chapters, acting in

concert, entered into a collective bargaining agree-

ment with the Council, effective January 1, 1956,

lierein referred to as the 1956 Agreement. The AGC
Chapters, in agreeing to, executing and promulgat-

ing said 1956 Agreement, acted for and in behalf of

their respective employer members. The Council, in
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General Coimsers Exhibit No. 1-H—(Continued)

agreeing to executing and promulgating said 1956

agreement, acted for and in behalf of its member
local unions, including Local 242.

VI.

The 1956 Agreement provides inter alia

^^Recruitment of Employees

"6. To maintain employment, to preserve work-

able labor relations, to proceed with private and

public work, the following accepted prevailing prac-

tices shall continue to prevail in the hiring of

workmen

:

^^(a) The recruitment of employees shall be the

responsibility of the Union and it shall maintain

offices or other designated facilities for the conven-

ience of the contractors when in need of employees

and for workmen when in search of employment.

^^(b) The contractors will call upon the Local

Union in whose territory the work is to be accom-

plished to furnish qualified workmen in the classifi-

cations herein contained.

*^ (c) Should a shortage of workmen exist and the

contractor has placed orders for men with the

Union, orally or written, and they cannot be sup-

plied by the Union within forty-eight (48) hours,

Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excluded, the con-

tractor may procure workmen from other sources.

^^(d) Either party to this Agreement shall have

the right to reopen negotiations pertaining to Union

security by giving the other party thirty (30) days

written notice, when there is reason to believe that
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the laws pertaining thereto have been changed by

Congressional Amendments, Court Decisions, or

governmental regulations.'

'

The ^^contractors" and the ''Local Union" re-

ferred to in the 1956 Agreement were the employer

members of the AGC Chapters and the member

local unions of the Council respectively.

VII.

At all times since January 1, 1956, the AGC
Chapters and their respective employer members

and the Council and its member local unions, in-

cluding Local 242, have published, maintained and

continued in effect the 1956 Agreement with respect

to the wages, hours, and working conditions of per-

sons employed by the employer members of the

AGC Chapters as hodcarriers, building and common
laborers, and in the selection of such persons for

hire.

VIII.

While the 1956 Agreement was being continued in

effect, at all times since January 1, 1956, Local 242

and the Council were labor organizations which

were obligated to procure employment for their

members in preference to non-union men.

IX.

While the 1956 Agreement was being continued in

effect, at all times since January 1, 1956, Local 242

and the Council, in the conduct of the functions of

each of them, particularly with respect to the re-
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criiitment of applicants for employment and in dis-

patching applicants to available jobs, have given

preference to applicants who are members of said

labor organizations.

X.

Lewis, during the six-month period prior to his

filing charges herein, and since then, has sought

employment in the Seattle area as a hodcarrier,

building and common laborer. Lewis repeatedly re-

ported his availability for work at the hiring hall

of Local 242, vvhere employee members of Local 242

were being dispatched to fill jobs in the aforesaid

classifications with employer members of the AGrC

Chapters. Prior to filing his charges herein, Local

242 refused to dispatch Lewis for such employment

and denied him employment opportunities in nu-

merous instances when jobs with the employer mem-
bers of AGC Chapters were available and unfilled.

Since filing his charges herein, Local 242 has dis-

patched Lewis to jobs intermittently, using these

occasions to induce Lewis to mthdraw his charges.

XL
The AGC Chapters, during the six-month period

prior to the filing of charges by Lewis, and since

then, (1) by continuing the 1956 Agreement in

effect with the Council, wherein it was provided

that member local unions of the Council were to

function as the employment recruiting office and

hiring hall of the employer members of the AGC
Chapters, in the absence of providing affirmative
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assurances against discrimination in the selection of

employees for hire, and by continuing the 1956

Agreement in effect with labor organizations which

(2) were obligated to give preference to their mem-
bers in dispatching applicants for employment, and

(3) did give such preference to their members, have

been and are fostering and establishing hiring prac-

tices among the employer members of the AGO
Chapters which have discriminated with respect to

the hire of Lewis and other non-union worlanen, to

encourage membership in a labor organization in

violation of Section 8 (a) (3) of the Act, and

thereby have been and are interfering Avith, re-

straining and coercing employees and applicants for

employment in the exercise of their right as guar-

anteed in Section 7 in violation of Section 8 (a) (1)

of the Act.

XII.

The Council, during the six-month period prior to

the filing of charges by Lewis, by continuing the

1956 Agreement in effect under the circumstances

and in the manner specified in Paragraph XI, has

been and is fostering and establishing hiring prac-

tices which caused the employer members of the

AGC Chapters to discriminate with respect to

Lewis and other non-imion workmen to encourage

membership in a labor organization, as proscribed

by Section 8 (a) (3) of the Act, in violation of Sec-

tion 8 (b) (2) of the Act, and by such deprivation

of employment said Council has been and is coerc-

ing and restraining employees and applicants for
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employment in the exercise of their rights as guar-

anteed in Section 7 in violation of Section 8 (b) (1)

(A) of the Act.

XIII.

Local 242, since January 1, 1956, by continuing

the 1956 Agreement in effect in governing the func-

tions of Local 242 under the circumstances and in

the manner specified in Paragraph XI, and by in-

voking its provisions when administering it, and by

the conduct of Local 242 with respect to Lewis as

described in Paragraph X, has been and is causing

employer members of the AGO Chapters to discrim-

inate as proscribed by Section 8 (a) (3) in violation

of Section 8 (b) (2) of the Act, and by such con-

duct and in refusing Lewis job opportunities Local

242 has been and is coercing and restraining em-

ployees in the exercise of their rights as guaranteed

in Section 7 in violation of Section 8 (b) (1) (A)

of the Act.
* * -x- * ^

/s/ THOMAS P. GRAHAM, JR.,

Regional Director, National Labor Relations Board,

Region 19, 407 U. S. Court House, Seattle 4,

Wash.

[Title of Board and Causes.]

INTERMEDIATE REPORT AND RECOM-
MENDED ORDER

Statement of the Case

This proceeding was initiated by three charges
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filed by Cyrus Lewis with the National Labor Rela-

tions Board (also referred to below as the Board).

The first was filed on May 11, 1956, in Case No.

19-CB-424 against the Respondent, International

Hodcarriers, Building and Common Laborers Union

of America, Local No. 242, AFL-CIO (also referred

to herein as Local 242) ; the second on August 7,

1956 in Case No. 19-CA-1374 against the Respond-

ents, Mountain Pacific Chapter of the Associated

General Contractors, Inc., The Associated General

Contractors of America, Seattle Chapter, Inc., and

Associated General Contractors of America, Tacoma

Chapter (also referred to herein collectively as the

AGC Chapters or the Chapters, and respectively as

the Mountain Pacific Chapter, the Seattle Chapter,

and the Tacoma Chapter ;'^ and the third on Septem-

ber 13, 1956 in Case No. 19-CB-445 against the

Respondent, Western Washington District Council

of International Hodcarriers, Building and Com-

mon Laborers Union of America, AFL-CIO (also

described herein as the District Council). On Sep-

tember 20, 1956, pursuant to the Board's Rules and

Regulations, Series 6, the Regional Director of the

Nineteenth Region of the Board duly entered an

order consolidating the three cases. Based upon the

charges, the General Counsel of the Board issued a

complaint on September 20, 1956, alleging that

'Based upon a stipulation of the parties, filed

with me subsequent to the hearing, I amend the rec-
ord, including the caption of this x>roceeding, to
show the correct names of the Chapters which are
those set out above. The stipulation is hereby made
a part of the record.
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Local 242, the District Council, and the AGC Chap-

ters had engaged, and were engaging, in unfair

labor practices within the meaning of the National

Labor Relations Act, as amended (61 Stat, 136-163),

also referred to below as the Act. Each of the said

Respondents has been duly served with a copy of

the charge applicable to it; of the order of consoli-

dation ; and of the complaint.

With respect to the claimed unfair labor prac-

tices, the complaint alleges, in sum, that the AGC
Chapters have interfered with, restrained and

coerced employees in the exercise of rights guaran-

teed them by Section 7 of the Act, thus violating

Section 8 (a) (1) of the Act; that Local 242 and

the District Council, as labor organizations, have

caused employers to discriminate against Lewis and

others in violation of Section 8 (a) (3), thus violat-

ing Section 8 (b) (2) of the Act; and that by such

conduct the said labor organizations have restrained

and coerced employees in the exercise of rights

guaranteed them by Section 7, thus violating Sec-

tion 8 (])) (1) (A) of the said Act.

Each of the Respondents has filed an answer in

which it denies the commission of the imfair labor

practices imputed to it in the complaint.

Pursuant to notice duly served upon all parties, a

hearing was held before me, as duly designated

Trial Examiner, on October 26 and 27, 1956, at

Seattle, Washington. Each of the parties, with the

exception of Lewis, was represented by counsel at

the hearing. The parties were afforded a full oppor-

tunity to be heard, examine and cross examine wit-
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nesses, adduce evidence, file briefs, and submit oral

argument. I reserved decision on a motion, made

after the close of the evidence by Local 242 and the

District Council, to dismiss the allegations of the

complaint applicable to them. The findings and con-

clusions made below dispose of the motion. The

G-eneral Counsel and the Seattle and Tacoma Chap-

ters have filed briefs which have been read and con-

sidered. The other parties have waived their right to

file briefs.

Upon the entire record, and from my observation

of the mtnesses, I make the following:

Findings of Fact

I. Nature of the business of the AGC Chapters;

their status as employers; jurisdiction

Each of the AGC Chapters is a corporate associa-

tion of employers who are engaged, as contractors,

in the construction business and have their princi-

pal places of business in the western part of the

State of Washington. The respective principal offi-

ces of the Mountain Pacific and Seattle Chapters

are located in Seattle, Washington. The Tacoma

Chapter maintains its principal office in Tacoma,

Washington.

Each of the Chapters, for and on behalf of its

members, performs the function of negotiating and

entering into collective bargaining agreements with

labor organizations. These agreements prescribe

wages, hours and conditions of employment affect-

ing individuals employed by such members. The
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Chapters customarily negotiate and enter into such

agreements jointly, conducting the negotiations

through a group of individuals made up of members

of a labor committee maintained by each of the

Chapters. This procedure was followed in 1955 in

negotiating a collective bargaining agreement cur-

rently in effect between the AGC Chapters and the

District Council. (More specific reference will be

made to this contract below.) By reason of the rep-

resentative status of the AGC Chapters and their

joint procedures in negotiating and executing col-

lective bargaining agreements, the Chapters and

their members constitute a single employer within

the meaning of Section 2 (2) of the Act. The asser-

tion of jurisdiction over the subject matter of this

proceeding may thus properly be based upon the

operations in, or affecting, interstate commerce of

members of any or all of the Chapters.^

In 1955, members of the Seattle Chapter per-

formed construction work of the aggregate value of

$26,586,361 for enterprises which annually ship

goods valued in excess of $100,000 in interstate

commerce. During that year, members of the Seat-

tle Chapter performed work of the aggregate value

of $23,431,353, under contract with the United

States Grovernment, on installations directly related

to the national defense. In 1955, also, members of

the Seattle Chapter performed construction work

of the total value of $20,773,717 on construction

projects located outside the State of Washington.

^ Insulation Contractors of Southern California,

Inc., 110 NLRB 638, and cases cited.
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The aggregate dollar volume of construction work

perfoiined by members of the Tacoma Chapter in

1955 in each of the three categories set forth above

for members of the Seattle Chapter amounted to

approximately one-third of the dollar volume of

work performed by members of the Seattle Chapter

in each such category. At the time of the hearing in

this proceeding, a member of the Mountain Pacific

Chapter was engaged in construction work on in-

stallations directly related to the national defense,

and located outside of the State of Washington,

under a contract with the United States Govern-

ment providing for the payment of $6,000,000' for

the work required by the agreement.^

In sum, members of the AGC Chapters have been,

at all times material to this proceeding, engaged in

interstate commerce within the meaning of the Act

;

the operations of the AGrC Chapters and their mem-
bers have affected, and affect, such commerce;* the

Board has jurisdiction over this proceeding; and

the assertion of its jurisdiction will effectuate the

policies of the Act.

^ The record contains additional evidence that
members of the Mountain Pacific Chapter engage in
operations affecting interstate commerce of suffi-

cient scope to meet criteria promulgated by the
Board for the exercise of its jurisdiction. It is un-
necessary to deal with such evidence, since the fig-

ures given above amply warrant the assertion by
the Board of jurisdiction over this proceeding.

* Maytag Aircraft Corporation, 110 NLRB 594;
Insulation Contractors of Southern California, Inc.,

supra: and Jonesboro Grain Drying Cooperative,
110 NLRB 481.
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II. The labor organizations involved

The District Coimcil is comprised of various local

unions, including Local 242, affiliated with the In-

ternational Hodcarriers, Building and Common
Laborers of America, AFL-CIO (also referred to

below as the International). The District Council,

on behalf of Local 242 and other affiliates of the

International, has negotiated and entered into col-

lective bargaining agreements with the AGC Chap-

ters, prescri]>ing wages, hours of employment, and

other working conditions of employees of members

of the Chapters. One such agreement, to which addi-

tional reference will be made later, is currently in

effect. Local 242 admits to membership employees

of memlDcrs of the Chapters and represents such

employees for the purposes of collective bargaining.

Both the District Council and Local 242 are labor

organizations within the meaning of Section 2 (5)

of the Act.

III. The alleged unfair labor practices

A. Prefatory statement

On December 30, 1965, the AGC Chapters, ^ ^act-

ing for and on behalf of their members," jointly

entered into an agreement with the District Coun-

cil, prescribing wages, hours of employment, and

other working conditions of individuals employed

by members of the Chapters. The District Council

negotiated and entered into the contract for and on

behalf of various affiliates of the International, in-

cluding Local 242. By its terms, the agreement be-

came effective on January 1, 1956, and is to remain
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in effect (subject to various provisions for modifi-

cation not relevant here) until at least December

31, 1958.

One of the issues in this proceeding focuses upon

the legality of Section 6 of the contract, which pro-

vides :

6. To maintain employment, to preserve work-

able labor relations, to proceed with private and

public work, the following accepted prevailing

practices shall continue to j^revail in the hiring of

workmen :

(a) The recruitment of employees shall be the

responsibility of the Union ^ and it shall maintain

offices or other designated facilities for the conven-

ience of the Employers when in need of employees

and for workmen when in search of employment.

(b) The Employers will call upon the Local

Union in whose territory the work is to be accom-

plished to furnish qualified workmen in the classi-

fications herein contained.

(c) Should a shortage of workmen exist and the

Employer has placed orders for men with the

Union, orally or written, and they cannot be sup-

plied by the Union within forty-eight (48) hours,

Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excluded, the Em-
ployer may procure workmen from other sources.

(d) Either party to this Agreement shall have

^The term "^^Union'^, as used in the agreement,
refers to the District Council and the local unions
to which the contract is applicable. In that connec-
tion, see the opening paragraph of the agreement
(G. C. Exh. 4).
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the right to reopen negotiations pertaining to Union

security by giving the other party thirty (30) days

written notice, when there is reason to believe that

the laws pertaining thereto have been changed by

Congressional Amendments, Court Decisions, or

governmental regulations.

The membership of Local 242 consists of approx-

imately 1700 building and common laborers and

some 70 hod carriers. Since the execution of the

agreement with the AGC Chapters, as well as for

many years prior thereto. Local 242 has maintained

a hiring hall at its office in Seattle for the purpose

of dispatching laborers and hod carriers to jobs at

the request of employers engaged in the construc-

tion industry within the territorial jurisdiction of

the union. Members of Local 242 seeking dispatch

as laborers sign a registry book maintained by the

union at its office, are given a number, and are usu-

ally sent to jobs by the organization's dispatcher in

numerical rotation, unless an employer requests the

assignment of a specific individual, in which event,

the workman so requested is sent to the job in-

volved. Laborers who are not members may also

register, but they place their names in a different

part of the registry book and are dispatched in

numerical rotation only after all available members

who hold registry numbers have been dispatched.

Local 242 has no systematized procedure for dis-

patching hod carriers. No registry is maintained for

them. In some cases, the dispatcher assigns an

available hod carrier because he has been out of

work longer than others; in other situations, those
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awaiting assignment at the office decide among

themselves who is to be dispatched. Generally, if an

available hod carrier wishes it, he will be chosen for

dispatch to a job with a contractor for w^hom he has

worked before, and, as in the case of laborers, the

union will dispatch a hod carrier member to a job,

without regard to other factors, if an employer re-

quests the assignment of the individual. Local 242

has had occasion to dispatch hod carriers who are

not members of the organization, but the practice

has been to do so only on occasions when no mem-
bers are available for dispatch. In connection with

the hiring hall practices described above, it may be

noted that the dispatcher is obligated, under the

terms of the Internationars constitution, to do all

in his ^^power to procure employment for such

brothers (members) as may desire situations in

preference to any and all non-union men."

Cyrus Lewis, the charging party in this proceed-

ing, has been a hod carrier by occupation for about

20 years. He became a member of Local 242 in

1943; was subsequently suspended at one point or

another for non-payment of dues; was reinstated in

1947; was suspended again in or about 1949 for

non-payment of dues; and was dropped from mem-
bership at some point thereafter in 1949 or 1950.

He was unable to work as a hod carrier much of the

time during the next few years because of physical

disability, but from time to time when he felt able

to work, he sought dispatch as a hod carrier at the

union's hiring hall. On these occasions, the union

declined to dispatch him.
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Lewis ^ physical condition improved early in

1956,^ and on or about March. 15 of that year, he

came to the hiring hall and asked Leo Alhnan, the

union's corresponding secretary and dispatcher,

and Robert Buchanan, the organization's financial

secretary and business representative, to dispatch

him to a job. Both Allman and Buchanan told him

that no work was available. Lewis sought work at

the hiring hall two or three times each week during

the next seven or eight weeks, and met with the

same result, both Allman and Buchanan telling him

repeatedly that there was no work. Because of cli-

matic and related factors, the period was a slack

season for hod carriers (as is the spring of each

year until about the middle of May). However, not-

withstanding the season and the statements made to

Lewis to the effect that no work was available, hod

carriers were dispatched to jobs from the union's

hiring hall, some repeatedly, on a substantial num-

ber of occasions during the months of March, Ax)ril

and May 1956, while Lewis was at the union's office

seeking, and failing, to secure dispatch. Contrary

to a claim advanced by Allman in his testimony, the

evidence does not credibly establish that the hod

carriers dispatched were specifically requested by

the employers to whose projects they were sent.^

^ Unless otherwise stated, all events described
below took place in 1956.

^ Allman stated that as far as he could recall, the
only hod carriers dispatched during the slack season
prior to May 17 were those who were specifically

requested by contractors. However, he later contra-
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During the spring of 1956, Lewis made a number

of efforts to secure reinstatement to membership in

Local 242, while he was at the union's hiring hall

seeking work. Thus on April 3, he told Buchanan

that he wished to become a member of the union,

and offered to "pay some dues.'' Buchanan sug-

gested that Lewis discuss his request with Allman.

Lewis did so, and Allman stated that he would take

no money from Lewis, that "there Averen't any

jo]>s," and that he ^Vouldn't take any new mem-

bers." Buchanan took substantially the same posi-

tion as Allman on a number of other occasions w^hen

Lewis told Buchanan that he wished to be rein-

stated to membership.

On the morning of May 9, 1956, while on his way

home from an unsuccessful quest for work at the

hiring hall, Lewis secured employment for the bal-

ance of the day from a man named Albert Nielsen

in connection with the moving of a building. Mel-

dicted himself on that score, and at still another
point stated that he could not remember whether,
during the period in question, the only hod carriers

dispatched were those who were specifically re-

quested by contractors. Moreover, at various points,

tangential or unresponsive answers by Allman per-
suaded me that he was being evasive. In some in-

stances, Allman made no response to questions put
to him, and, upon appraisal of his demeanor, it

appeared to me that this was attributable to a desire

])y him to avoid answering rather than to a lack of
understanding of the questions involved. In con-

trast, Lewis impressed me as a credible witness, and
I have thus based findings herein on Lewis' testi-

raony with respect to what he observed at the hiring
hall and his conversations and transactions with
Allman.
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sen, who is engaged in the business of moving

buildings, is not a member of any of the AGO Chap-

ters. Shortly before quitting time that day,

Buchanan appeared at the project, and observing

that Lewis was employed there, told Nielsen that he

would place a picket line at the project unless

Nielsen hired only union members for the work in

progress there. Lewis continued to work the short

period remaining until quitting time and was then

paid off by Nielsen who had planned to employ

Lewis at the project only for the day.

On May 14, Lewis went to the office of Local 242

and asked Allman to dispatch him to a job. Allman

replied that he had heard that Lewis had filed a

charge against Local 242; that the imion was not

going to give Lewis ^^a damned thing"; and that

the latter was to '^get out and stay out." Lewis

reported the incident later that day to a field exam-

iner stationed in the Seattle regional office of the

Board. The field examiner thereupon telephoned

Buchanan. During the course of the conversation,

Buchanan suggested that the field examiner tell

Lewis to come to the office of Local 242 and inform

the union whether he desired dispatch as a hod car-

rier or a common laborer. (The record does not

establish what, if anything, else was said.)

Lewis visited the hiring hall on the morning of

the following day and asked Allman to dispatch

him. Allman replied that no work was available, but

stated that he might be able to send Lewis to a job

later that day if one turned up, and that Lewis

should *^ stick around." That morning, also.
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Buchanan asked Lewis if lie wished ^Ho take out a

number as a common laborer," and Lewis replied

that he preferred to be dispatched to a hod carrier's

job. Lewis was not dispatched on that day, nor on

the following day when he came to the hiring hall

and asked Allman for a job.

Lewis came to the hiring hall again on May 17,

arriving there at about 6:45 a.m. He was the first

hod carrier there. Some four or five hod carriers

arrived about 15 minutes later. These were dis-

patched first during the course of the morning,

although Lewis stationed himself at the dispatcher's

window as soon as Allman arrived. After dispatch

of the others, Lewis continued to wait for some time

at the union's office. At about 10:30 a.m., Lewis be-

came aware that Allman required a hod carrier for

dispatch ^^for some brick jo]>" at an establishment

described in the record as Todd's Shipyard. Lewis,

who was then the only available hod carrier at the

hiring hall, approached Allman and told him that

he wished to be dispatched to the job. Allman said

that the job was not one for a hod carrier and that

the opening was not at the shipyard. Shortly there-

after, a hod carrier came into the union office, and

Allman dispatched him to the shipyard. At one

point or another that morning, after various hod

carriers had been dispatched, Lewis telephoned the

field examiner mentioned above and reported that

he had not been dispatched and that he had been

given no job assignment. The field examiner there-

upon called the hiring hall and, talking either to

Buchanan or Allman, told one or the other that he
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had been informed that Lewis ^Svas not being sent

out.'' Shortly after the call, Allman, stating that he

would dispatch Lewis, told the latter that he wanted

him to withdraw the charge. Lewis replied that he

would see what he could do in that regard, and All-

man thereupon dispatched him to a job which lasted

a few days.

On May 23, having completed the work to which

he had been dispatched, Lewis presented himself at

the hiring hall and asked Allman for another dis-

patch„ The latter inquired of Lewis whether he had

withdrawn the charge, and upon receiving a nega-

tive rei)ly, remarked to Buchanan who was present

that ^^Lewis didn't do what we told him to do."

Buchanan said, "* * * the hell with him," and then

Allm.an told Lewis: "You didn't go down and with-

draw the charge like I told you to so you can get

out and stay out as far as I am concerned."

Nevertheless, Lewis came to the hiring hall on the

following day and asked Allman to dispatch him.

Allman refused, stating that he had previously dis-

patched Lewis on the assumption that the latter

would wdthdraw the charge, and that Lems would

not be dispatched again until he withdrew it. Dur-

ing the next several weeks, Lems repeatedly went

to the hiring hall seeking dispatch, ]>ut he was un-

successful. Allman told him on these occasions that

no work was avail a])le. On June 13, however. All-

man dispatched him to a job which lasted for al^out

a week.

On June 21, after completion of that job, Lewis

made a request of Allman that he be admitted to
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membership in Local 242, offering to pay what he

understood to be the required initiation fee. (Lewis

had heard that the fee was $37.50, and he had

enough funds on his person to pay that sum.) All-

man's reply to the offer was that he would not take

any money from Lewis "until I get a statement

from the Board that you have withdrawn the case."

Several weeks later, on July 11, Allman dis-

patched Lewis to a job which lasted until August 6.

On August 8, Lewis asked Allman for another dis-

patchy and re^^eated his offer ^Ho pay some money''

toward admission to membership in the union. All-

man again rejected the offer, asserting that he

would take no money from Lewis until he received

a letter from the Board stating "that the case had

been dropped." Lewis, however, continued to return

to the hiring hall for dispatch, and was sent to a

job by Allman some days later. Since then he has

been securing work through the hiring hall with

substantial regulaiity.

On August 18, Lewis made another attempt to

become a member of Local 242, broaching the sub-

ject to Allman at the dispatch window in the hiring

hall. This time, unlike the previous occasions. All-

man invited Lewis into the office behind the window

for a discussion of the matter. The dispatcher again

declined to take any money from Lewis, but said

that he would give Lewis a "slip as good as a

(union membership) book," and that the slip would

be valid until the following September 18. Allman

thereupon signed and gave Lewis a printed form

bearing the caption ^^ Official Receipt," and contain-
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ing an entry signifying that it was to be valid until

September 18. (From the material printed on the

form, it is evident that the vmion uses slips of this

type to acknowledge payment of initiation fees and

dues by its members.) Lewis remarked that "my
business here is to pay some money," and asked

Allman whether he would be required to pay any

sum for the slip. The dispatcher assured him that

he would not "have to pay a nickel."

During the following week, Lewis worked at a

project to which Allman had dispatched him. Some
time during the course of the week, Allman visited

him at the project, and asked him whether he had

withdrawn the charge. Lewis replied that he had

discussed the subject with the Seattle regional office

of the Board and had been informed there that the

matter was out of his hands^ and that the charge

would not be dismissed.

Allman made another effort to persuade Lewis

to withdraw the charge shortly after the expiration

date of the "Official Receipt," visiting Lewis for

that purpose at another project where the latter

was employed. In the course of the discussion, All-

man told Lewis that "other cases had been filed

against the union"; that "we have given the boys

work and they have withdrawn the cases"; and that

he had come to the project to "see if you would

withdraw the case, if you want to keep working."

The dispatcher asked Lewis whether he v/ould "sign

a paper" stating that he wished to withdraw the

charge, in order to ^^ prove" that he had ^Hried to

withdraw" it. Levds replied that he had been told
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at the regional office that the matter was out of his

hands; that he preferred that Allman "call up and

talk to some officials up there''; and that there was

nothing else that he could do about the matter.

B. Concluding findings

The Greneral Coimsel contends that Section 6 of

the agreement described above contains provisions

that are invalid per se. In that regard, it is alleged

in the complaint that ^^by continuing (the agree-

ment) in effect/'^ the AGO Chapters have been

interfering with, restraining and coercing employ-

ees in the exercise of rights guaranteed them by

Section 7 of the Act, thus violating Section 8 (a)

(1) of the statute; and the District Council and

Local 242 have been causing employer members of

the Chapters to discriminate in violation of Section

8 (a) (3) of the Act, thereby violating Sections 8

(b) ("2) and 8 (b) (1) (A) of the Act.^ As the

^ The complaint does not allege the execution of
the agreement, as distinguished from its mainte-
nance, as a violation of the Act. So far as the Dis-
trict Council and the AGC Chapters are concerned,
such an allegation is barred by Section 10 (b) of the
Act, since the agreement was executed more than
six months prior to the filing of the res|)ective

charges against these Respondents.

^ The complaint does not charge that by maintain-
ing Section 6 of the agreement, the Chapters dis-

criminated in violation of Section 8 (a) (3) of the
Act (see Par. XI of the complaint), although it

alleges that by maintaining the relevant contract
provisions, the District Council and Local 242 have
caused members of the Chapters to discriminate in
violation of Section 8 (a) (3).
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General Counsel asserts that the contract terms in

question are unlawful per se, the validity of the

claim must be tested by reference to the relevant

language alone, and without regard to the conten-

tion^ also advanced by the General Counsel, that

members of the AGC Chapters have actually dis-

criminated ^Svith respect to the hire of Lewis/' and

that Local 242 caused such discrimination. The

claim of actual discrimination against Lewis, and

the question of the responsibility therefor of Local

242, will be separately considered at another point

below.

For support of his position con<^erning Section

6 of the agreement, the General Counsel relies upon

Pacific Intermountain Express Company, 107

NLRB 838, enforced as modified, 225 F, 2d 343

(C.A. 8). "There the Board considered the legal-

ity of certain seniority provisions of two collec-

tive bargaining contracts, one made in 1949 and

the other in 1952. I'he relevant language of the

first provided that ^^any controversy over the senior-

ity standing of any employees on this list shall be

referred to the Union for settlement." The later

agreement contained the same language, but pro-

vided, in addition, that "such determination shall

be made without regard to w^hether the employees

"The General Counsel also cites and relies upon
the later case of North East Texas Motor Lines,

Inc., et als., 109 NLRB 1147, enforced as modified,

228 F. 2d 702 (C.A. 5). In that case, the Board
held invalid contractual provisions substantially

similar to those involved in the Pacific Intermoim-
tain Express case.
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involved are members or not members of the

Union/' Overruling a contrary position taken by

it in an earlier case (Firestone Tire and Rubber

Company, 93 NLRB 981), the Board lield the dele-

gation to the union of ^^complete control over the

determination of seniority'' to be unlawful per se,

and that as a result of agreeing to, and maintain-

ing, the relevant contract provisions, the employer

involved had violated Sections 8 (a) (1) and 8 (a)

(3), and the union Sections 8 (b) (1) (A) and 8

(b) (2). The Board stated the reasons for its

holding as follows (p. 845)

:

The objective standards relevant to a determina-

tion of seniority generally derive from the em-

ployment history of the employees involved, and

that information is, as a rule, peculiarly within the

knowledge of the employer. Indeed, the area in

which the union is likely to be more informed

than the employer with respect to the employer's

employees is that pertaining to employees' union

membership or to the employees' compliance with the

union's constitution, bylaws, or other regulations

—

subjects, however, which obviously are not relevant

considerations in the implementation of a seniority

pro^dsion. We can therefore see no basis for pre-

suming that when an employer delegates to a union

the authority to determine the seniority of its em-

ployees, or even to settle controvt^rsies with respe<3t

to seniority^ such control will be exercised by the

union in a nondiscriminatory mamier. Rather, it is

to be presumed, we believe, that such delegation is

intended to, and in fact will, be used by the union
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to encourage iiiembersliip in the miion. Accord-

ingly, the inchision of a bare provision, like that

in the 1949 contract, that delegates complete con-

trol over seniority to a luiion is violative of the

Act ]:iecause it tends to encourage membership in

the miion. And because we believe that it will

simiL^rly tend to encourage membership in the

iniion, we also conclude that, the inclusion of a

statement, like that in the 1952 contract, that

seniority Avill he determined without regard to

miion mem])ership is not by itself enough to cure

the vice of giving to the ujiion complete control

over the settlement of a ''controversy'' vith respect

to seniority.

From his reliance upon the Pacific Intermomi-

tain Express case, it is evident that the General

Comisel analogizes the delegation to a union, by

contract, of "complete conti^ol" over the resolution

of seniority questions to contractual x^rovisions,

such as those involved here, which vest in a imion

the exclusive responsibility for the recruitment of

qualified workmen sul^Ject only to the qualification

that if the union cannot supply such la'oor within

48 hours after a request therefor, the employer

may procure it from other sources. The analogy,

however, does not survive scrutiny of the mider-

lying reasons for the Board's holding in the Pacific

Intermountain Express case.

In arriving at its result, the Board pointed out

that "the ol^jective standards relevant to a deter-

mination of seniority generally derive from the em-

ployment history of the employees involved, and
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that information, is as a rule, peculiarly witliin the

knowledge of the employer''; and that matters, such

as those related to union meml^ership, ux3on which

the union is likely to be more informed than an

employer, "are not relevant considerations to the

implementation of a seniority x>rovision.
'

' From
these factors, the Board "presumed" that the dele-

gation involved in the cited case was ^ ^intended to,

and in fact (w^ould), be used by the union to en-

courage membership in the union," and held the

relevant jirovision in each contract to be "violative

of the Act because it tends to encourage member-

ship in the union."

However, the factors which led to the Board's

presumption are not present here. It is common
knowledge that the union hiring hall is a traditional

feature of many industries, including the building

trades,^^ and that its use as a source of supply of

labor long antedated the passage of the Act. In

that regard, it may be noted that the hiring hall

maintained by Local 242 has been in existence for

more than 30 years. It is also a matter of common
knowledge that in many industries, employers look

to, and rely upon, imion hiring halls as convenient

and necessary vehicles for the recruitment of labor.

" Contractual provisions relating to union hiring
halls, and the validity of their application, have
been considered by the Board in many cases. See,
among others, for exam^ple, American Pipe and
Steel Corporation, 93 NLRB 54; Pacific American
Shipowners Association, 90 NLRB 1099; Water-
front Employers of Washington, 98 NLRB 284;
and Pacific Coast Marine Firemen, etc., 107 NLRB
593.
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As the evidence in this proceeding establishes, this

is true of members of the AGC Chapters. (See,

in that connection, the testimony of Wilbur H.

Landaas.) Moreover a union hiring hall also serves

as a central point where workmen may make known
their job necessities and secure employment, reliev-

ing them of the need for an expenditure of time,

energy and money in a search for work at dispersed

places. From v/hat has been said, it is evident that,

imlike the data generally needed to resolve ques-

tions of seniority, information concerning the avail-

ability of individuals for employment is frequently,

to say the least, ^ ^peculiarly within the knowledge"

of the union rather than of employers seeking

workmen; and that such information may serve

the convenience and needs of employers and em-

ployees alike. Bearing in mind such factors of in-

dustrial and economic convenience and necessity,

I can see no basis for a presumption that a "bare

provision" delegating to a union the responsibility

for the recruitment of labor in the teiins expressed

in Section 6 "is intended to, and in fact will, be

used" to encourage miion membership. One could

with at least equal logic, I think, presume that the

purpose of such a provision, standing above, is to

meet the industrial and economic convenience and

necessities of employers and those seeking employ-

ment. Upon close scrutiny of the General CounsePs

position, what it implies is that one should indulge

a presumption from the naked provisions of Sec-

tion 6, alone, that the parties thereto intend to, and

will, use them for unlavv'ful purposes, despite the
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fact that they may also be used for the lawful xDur-

pose of furnishing employers with an advantageous

source for the supply of labor, and jobseekers with

a convenient method of securing work. The adoption

of such a doctrine would, in my judgment, run

counter to traditional and elementary legal con-

cepts.

What is more, there are authorities that are

more to the point than the Pacific Intermoimtain

Express case. In Pacific American Shipowners

Association, 90 NLRB 1099, the Board considered

the legality of a contract proposal that "all unli-

censed personner' be secured through a union's hir-

ing hall. The proposal included a prohibition

against discrimination on the basis of union mem-
bership. The Board held that the proposal was

not unlawful, pointing out that ^^the provision con-

tained in the proposal that personnel be secured

through the offices of the Respondent (the union)

does not, on its face, require discrimination because

of union affiliation" (ibid. p. 1101). The case of

Pacific Marine Firemen, etc., 107 NLRB 593, de-

cided a few weeks before the Pacific Intermountain

Express case, also involved a contract proidsion re-

quiring employers to secure all personnel in vari-

ous classifications "from and through the offices"

of a labor organization, and prohibiting discrim-

ination because of membership or non-membership

in the union. While the Board did not expressly

pass upon the legality of the agreement, there is a

clear implication in its decision that it proceeded

upon the assumption that the contract was lawful,

for in connection with the remedy it formulated
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relating to a discriminatory application of the

union's hiring hall, it went so far as to provide

that the union's "obligation to maintain a nondis-

criminatory hiring hall shall be limited to such

times as it acts as the exclusive source of supply

of the personnel * * *'' (ibid. p. 594, n. 2). To be

sure, the provisions in both cases, in contrast to

Section 6, contained express prohibitions against

discrimination on the basis of imion membership.

But it seems to me that hiring hall provisions which

are not stated in discriminatory terms do not be-

come discriminatory simply because of the omission

of an express prohibition against discrimination.

In that regard, it may be noted that the Board in

the Pacific American Shipowners case appears to

have considered the statement of such a prohibi-

tion as an added, rather than the controlling, rea-

son for its conclusion that the hiring provision

there involved was not unlawful. The sum of the

matter is that the long standing precedent of the

Pacific American Shipowners decision is applicable

here, and that the distinguishable holding of the

Pacific Intermoimtain Express case is inapposite.

Hence, I do not agree that the provisions of Sec-

tion 6 of the agreement between the AGO Chap-

ters and the District Council are invalid per se, and

I find that by the mere fact of "continuing (the

agreement) in effect," the Respondents have not

violated any of the provisions of the Act.^^

^^ Trial Examiner Martin S. Bennett recently
held to the contrary in a case involving the same
contractual provisions, the AGC Chapters, the Bis-
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As noted earlier, apart from his claim that Sec-

tion 6 of the contract contains provisions that are

invalid per se, the General Counsel contends that

in applying these provisions^ Local 242 caused

members of the AGO Chapters to discriminate

against Lewis in violation of Section 8 (a) (3) in

that the union failed and refused to dispatch him

for employment hy members of the Chaj^ters be-

cause he was not a member of the organization.

Preliminary to a resolution of the issue, it may be

noted that the General Coimsel advances no claim

that Local 242 caused Nielsen (who is not a mem-
ber of any of the Chapters) to discriminate against

Lewis. Nor does the complaint include an allega-

tion that Local 242 caused Todd's Shipyard to dis-

criminate against Lewds.) (There is no evidence

that the firm is a member of any of the Chapters.) ^^

However, Buchanan's conversation with Nielsen,

and Allman's failure to dispatch Lewis to Todd's

Shipyard, are relevant to the question whether

Local 242 has maintained a discriminatory policy

of giving preferment in dispatch at its hiring hall

to union members over those who are not members,

and whether that policy has been applied to Lewis.

trict Council, and a local affiliate of the latter. See
Mountain Pacific, Seattle, and Tacoma Chapters
of the Associated General Contractors of America,
Inc., et als., Case Nos. 19-CA-1276 and 19-CB-392.
That proceeding is now pending before the Board
on exceptions.

" It may be observed in passing, also, that no
evidence was offered that either Nielsen or Todd's
Shipyard is engaged in interstate commerce or in
operations affecting such commerce.
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In that regard, Allman gave testimony to the

effect that he never discriminated in dispatching

Le^^ns on the basis of the latter 's lack of member-

ship in Local 242, asserting also that on the occa-

sion v/hen Lewis was sent to a job on May 17, he

was dispatched to "about the first" opening to ])e-

come available for a hod carrier at the hiring hall

in the spring of 1956. I do not credit this testi-

mony/* The evidence establishes, as Buchanan in

effect conceded, that it is the union's x>olicy to give

preference in dispatch to its members. What is

more, as Allman admitted, he is bound hj the terms

of an obligation he has taken, as an incident of

the office he holds, to do all in his ^'j)ower to pro-

cure employment for such brothers as may desire

situations to any and all non-union men." I have

no doubt that Allman repeatedly applied this pol-

icy to Lewis prior to the latter's dispatch on May

" I^OT do I credit Allman 's claim that he rejected

Lewis' request for dispatch to the Todd job on May
17 because, according to Allman, the job required
a man of smaller physical proportions than Lewis.
When Lewis asked for the job, Allman gave no
such reason for declining to dispatch him. More-
over, Lewis' undisputed version of his conversation
with Allman on the occasion in question is that
Allman told him that the job opening available was
not at the shipyard. It may also be noted that in

a written statement given to a representative of
the G-eneral Counsel, Allman denied dispatching
any hod carrier to Todd's Shipyard on May 17.

Because of the foregoing, as well as other infirmi-

ties in Allman 's testimony, I am persuaded that the
reason he now advances for refusing to dispatch
Lewis to the shipyard is an afterthought.
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17 and referred union members to jobs in prefer-

ence to Lewis because the latter was not a member

of Local 242. Moreover, it is clear that Allman

applied a carrot-and-stick procedure to Lewis to

coerce him into withdrawing the charge he had

filed against Local 242, refusing to dispatch Lewis

on May 14 because he had filed the charge ; then a

few days later dispatching him in order to induce

him to withdraw it; thereafter resorting to a xiol-

icy of refusing to dispatch Lewis, and of rejecting

his offers to become a member, because he had not

withdrawn the charge ; later furnishing Lewis with

the "Official Receipt, '^ obviously with a view to

inducing him to drop the charge; and finally visit-

ing Lewis at a project where he was at work and

soliciting him to sign a paper that he wished to

drop the charge, while intimating to Lewis that he

would not l)e dispatched again unless the charge

were withdrawn.

Despite the discriminatory treatment accorded

Lems by Local 242, the record will not support

a finding that any members of the AGO Chapters

(or, for that matter, any other employer) dis-

criminated "with respect to the hire of Lewis,''

as the complaint alleges, and that Local 242 caused

such discrimination, within the meaning of the

Act. The heart of the matter is that there is no

evidence in the record that any member of any of

the AGO Chapters sought or requisitioned any

labor at or through the office of Local 242 at any

time since the effective date of the contract. Moral

convictions that such reciuisitions were made will
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not suffice, for they are no substitute for evidence.

However^ the General Counsel takes the position

in his brief, as he did, in effect, at the hearing,

that "the determination of the extent of the dis-

crimination" is a matter for the compliance stage

of the proceeding. As support for his iiosition,

the General Counsel cites International Union of

Operating Engineers, Local No. 12, 113 NLRB
655, recently enforced as modified, 38 LBRM 2776

(C.A. 9). That case is inapposite, for the Board

made express findings that the employers there in-

volved actually requisitioned labor from a hiring

hall maintained by a union under the terms of a

collective bargaining agreement (113 NLRB 655,

659). With that as a background, the Board found

that the union had discriminated against a given

individual in job referrals from the hiring hall,

and concluded that the extent to which he "was

injured by the unlawful system of preferences"

could ^^ properly be settled in the compliance stage

of the proceeding" (ibid. p. 663). The General

Counsel's position, and his reliance upon the cited

ease, beg the question, for what is at issue here is

not "the determination of the extent of the discrim-

ination," but Avhether the evidence will support a

finding of discrimination, whatever its extent, by

members of the AGC Chapters. The imderlying

theory of the General Counsel's case is that by

force of Section 6 of the agreement, the Chapters,

as agents for their members, delegated to the Dis-

trict Coujicil and its affiliates, including Local 242,

the responsibility for dispatching workmen for em-
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ployment by such members, and that in the exer-

cise of the authority delegated to it, Local 242

caused members of the Chapters to discriminate

against Lems. There is no doul)t, as pointed out

earlier, that Local 242 discriminated against Lewis,

but there can be no finding that it discriminatorily

exercised the authority delegated to it hy members

of the AGC Chapters if there is no e^T.dence that

at any time since the effective date of the agree-

m.ent, any of these members sought or requisitioned

labor from Local 242, the agency through which

Lewis sought job referrals. The critical fact is

that there is no such evidence, and however one

may condemn the treatment accorded Lewis by

Local 242, and desire to do him moral justice, one

must not blind himself to deficiencies in the evi-

dence/^

'^ In the course of a discussion of the state of
the record, the General Counsel made the observa-
tion at the hearing that Local 242 ^^kept no rec-

ords of these incoming requisitions for hod car-

riers.'' Without deciding or implying that the state

of the union's records has a material effect upon
the issue at hand, it may be noted in passing that
there is no proof that Local 242 keeps no records
of such "incoming requisitions," although there is

evidence that it maintains no registry for hod car-

riers seeking job referrals. Moreover, it does not
appear that members of the AGC Chapters keep no
records of such requisitions for labor as they may
have occasion to submit to unions or that such
members are unable to give evidence on the subject
of requisitions submitted to Local 242. The Gen-
eral Counsel has apparently chosen to submit the
case upon the theory that evidence of such requi-
sitions is unnecessary to support a finding that
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For the reasons stated abovc^ I shall recommend

that the complaint hei dismissed m its entirety with

respect to the AGC Chapters and the District

Council, and that so much of it l^e dismissed as

alleges that Local 242 caused members of the Chap-

ters to discriminate against Lewis.

I reach a different result^ however, in connection

with the coercive efforts of Local 242 to induce

Lewis to mthdraw the charge he filed against that

organization. The absence of evidence that the

hiring hall maintained by Local 242 has been used

l)y any members of the Chapters does not negate

the fact that the maintenance of the hall was in

effect embraced within the terms of a contract made

between the District Council, on behalf of Local

242 and other unions, and organizations of employ-

ers whose operations affect commerce within the

meaning of the Act, and that Local 242 used the

hall as a means of coercing Lewis. The several

threats made to Lewis that he would not be dis-

patched unless he withdrew the charge embraced

the implication that he would not be referred to

jobs upon any requisitions submitted by members

of the Chapters under the terms of Section 6 of

the contract. Accordingly, I find that as a result

of each instance, described above, when Lewis was

dispatched in order to induce him to withdraw the

charge, and of each occasion, outlined above, when
Local 242, whether through Buchanan or Allman

members of the AGC Chapters have discriminated
against Lewis, and that Local 242 has caused such
discrimination.
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or both, told Lewis in effect that he would not be

dispatched or given employment through the hiring

hall because he had filed the charge or that he

would not be dispatched or given employment

through the hiring hall unless the charge were with-

drawing Local 242 restrained and coerced Lewis in

the exercise of rights guaranteed him by Section

7 of the Act, and thereby violated Section 8 (b)

(1) (A) of the statute.^'

IV. The effect of the unfair labor

practices upon commerce

The unfair labor practices of Local 242 set forth

in Section III, above, occurring in connection with

the operations of the AGO Chapters described in

Section I, above, have a close, intimate and sub-

stantial relation to trade, traffic, and coimnerce

among the several states, and tend to lead to labor

disputes burdening and obstructing commerce and

the free flow of commerce.

V. The remedy

Having found that Local 242 has violated Sec-

tion 8 (b) (1) (A) of the Act, I shall recommend

below that the said Local 242 cease and desist from

its unfair lal)or practices and take certain affirma-

tive action designed to effectuate the policies of

the Act.

Upon the basis of the foregoing findings of fact,

and on the entire record in this proceeding, I make
the following:

'' D. D. Bean & Sons., 79 NLRB 724 (and cases
cited at p. 725, n. 6).
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Conclusions of Law
1. The AGrC Chapters are, and each of them is,

an employer within the meaning of Section 2 (2)

of the Act.

2. The District Council and Local 242 are, re-

spectively, labor organizations within the meaning

of Section 2 (5) of the Act.

3. By restraining and coercing employees in

the exercise of rights guaranteed them by Section

7 of the Act, as found above. Local 242 has en-

gaged, and is engaging, in unfair labor xoractices

vdthin the meaning of Section 8 (b) (1) (A) of the

Act.

4. The aforesaid unfair labor practices are un-

fair labor practices affecting commerce within the

meaning of Sections 2 (6) and 2 (7) of the Act.

Recommendations

Upon the basis of the foregoing findings of fact

and conclusions of law, and upon the entire record

in this proceeding, I recommend that Interna-

tional Hodcarriers, Building and Common Labor-

ers Union of America, Local No. 242, AFL-CIO, its

officers, agents, successors, and assigns shall:

1. Cease and desist from:

(a) Dispatching or referring to any job or em-

ployment any employee or individual seeking dis-

patch or referral to any job or employment, or

promising or oifering to dispatch or refer any

such employee or individual to such job or em-
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ployment, for the purpose of persuading or induc-

ing any such employee or individual to withdraw

or abandon a charge filed with the National Labor

Relations Board, or upon condition that such a

charge be withdrawn or abandoned;

(b) Threatening, or otherwise informing, any

such employee or individual that he will not be

dispatched or referred to any job or employment,

or that he is being, or will be, denied any job or

employment opportunity, because he has filed a

charge with the National Labor Relations Board,

or unless he withdraws, or promises or undertakes

to withdraw or abandon, such a charge; and

(c) In any other manner restraining or coerc-

ing employees or individuals seeking dispatch or

referral to any job or employment in the exercise

of their right to self-organization, to form, join or

assist any labor organization, to bargain collec-

tively through representatives of their own choos-

ing, to engage in concerted activities for the pur-

pose of collective bargaining or other mutual aid

or protection, and to refrain from any or all such

activities, except to the extent that such right may
be affected by an agreement requiring membership

in a labor organization as a condition of emjoloy-

ment, as authorized in Section 8 (a) (3) of the

Act."

" The course of conduct of Local 242 toward
Lewis vitally affected his opportunities to earn a
living. This type of behavior stiikes at the heart
of rights guaranteed employees by Section 7 of
the Act, and manifests a disposition by Local 242
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2. Take the following affirmative action which, I

find, will effectuate the policies of the Act:

(a) Post in conspicuous places at its usual mem-
bership meeting place and office in Seattle, includ-

ing places where individuals come to it for the

purpose of seeking dispatch or referral to jobs

or employment, and where notices to such indi-

viduals and members are customarily posted, copies

of the notice attached hereto and marked Appen-

dix A. Copies of said notice, to be furnished by

the Regional Director of the Mneteenth Region of

the 13oard, shall, after being signed by a duly

authorized representative of said Local 242, be

posted by it immediately upon receipt thereof and

maintained by it for GO consecutive days there-

after. Reasonable steps shall be taken by it to in-

sure that said notices are not altered, defaced, or

covered by any other material; and

(b) Notify the said Regional Director, in writ-

to tliwart the (^xercise of all sucli ric^hts as it may
think its interests require. The guarantees set

forth in Section 7 are interdependent, and the vio-

lations found above are related to other imfair
labor practices proscribed by the Act. In view of
the conduct of Local 242, it may be reasonably
be anticipated that it will cojumit such other unfair
labor practices in the future unless appropriately
restrained. For that reason, and in order to make
effective the interdepeudeijit guarantees of Section

7, T am of the opinion that the Board's order
should embrace the terms set forth above. See
KL.R.B. V. Entwhistle Mfg. Co., 120 F. 2d 532
(C.A. 4) ; May Department Stores v. N.L.R.B.,
326 U.S. 376.
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ing, within 20 days from the receipt of this Inter-

mediate Report and Recommended Order, what

steps it has taken to comply Avith the foregoing

recommendations applicable to it.

* * -x- * *

It is recommended that the complaint be dis-

missed in its entirety with respect to the District

Council and the AGrC Chapters.

It is further recommended that so much of the

complaint be dismissed as alleges that Local 242

violated Sections 8 (b) (2) and 8 (b) (1) (A) of

the Act by causing members of the AGC Chap-

ters to discriminate in violation of Section 8 (a)

(3) of the Act.

It is further recommended that, unless on or

before 20 days from the receipt of this Inter-

mediate Report and Recommended Order, Local

242 notify the said Regional Director in writing

that it will comply with the foregoing recom-

mendations, the National Labor Relations Board

issue an order requiring the said Local 242 to take

the actions required of it above.

Dated this 11th day of December, 1956.

/s/ HERMAN MARX,
Trial Examiner.
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APPE]sn3IX A
Notice To Our Members and All Individuals Seek-

ing Dispatch or Referral To Jobs By This

Organization Pursuant To The Recommenda-

tions of a Trial Examiner of the National

Labor Relations Board and in order to effectu-

ate the policies of the National Labor Rela-

tions Act, we hereby notify our members and

all individuals seeking dispatch or referral to

jobs by us that:

We T\Tll Not dispatch or refer to any job or

employment any employee or individual seeking

dispatch or referral to any job or employment, or

promise or offer to dispatch or refer any such

employee or individual to any such job or employ-

ment, for the purpose of persuading or inducing

any such employee or individual to v^uthdraw or

abandon a charge filed Avith the National Labor

Relations Board, or upon condition that such a

charge be withdra\vn or abandoned.

We Will Not threaten, or othermse infomi, any

such employee or indi^ddual that he A^ill not be

dispatched or referred to any job or employment,

or that he is l^eing, or will be, denied any job or

emx^lo^anent opportunity, because he has filed a

charge with the National Labor Relations Board,

or miless he withdraws, or promises or undertakes

to withdraw or abandon, such a charge.

We Will Not in any other mamier restrain or

coerce employees or individuals seeking dispatch

or referral to any job or employment in the exer-
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cise of their right to self-organization, to form,

join or assist any labor organization, to bargain

collectively through representatives of their own
choosing, to engage in concerted activities for the

purpose of collective bargaining or other mutual

aid or protection, and to refrain from any or all

such activities, except to the extent that such right

may be affected by an agreement requiring mem-
bership in a labor organization as a condition of

emplo3mient, as authorized in Section 8 (a) (3) of

the Act.

International Hodcarriers, Building and Common
Laborers Union of America, Local No. 242,

AFL-CIO,

(Labor Organization.)

Dated

By
(Representative) (Title)

This notice must remain posted for 60' days from

the date hereof, and must not be altered, defaced,

or covered by any other material.
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119 NLRB No. 126 D-841

Seattle, Wash.

United States of America

Before the National Labor Relations Board

Case No. 19-CA-1374—Mountain Pacific Chapter of

the Associated General Contractors, Inc., The

Associated General Contractors of America,

Seattle Chapter, Inc., and Associated General

Contractors of America, Tacoma Chapter,

and

Case No. 19-CB-424— International Hodcarriers,

Building and Common Laborers Union of

America, Local No. 242, APL-CIO,

and

Case No. 19-CB-445—^Western Washington District

Council of International Hodcarriers, Build-

ing and Common Laborers Union of America,

APL-CIO,

and

Cyrus Lewis, Charging Party.

DECISION AND ORDER
On December 11, 1956, Trial Examiner Herman

Marx issued his Intermediate Report in the above-

entitled proceeding, finding that the Respondent

Local 242 had engaged in and was engaging in cer-

tain unfair labor practices and recommending that

it cease and desist therefrom and take certain

affirmative action, as set forth in the copy of the

Intermediate Report attached hereto. The Trial
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Examiner also recommended that the comx)laint be

dismissed as to all other Respondents. Thereafter

the General Counsel filed exceptions to the Inter-

mediate Report and a supporting brief.

The Board has reviewed the rulings of the Trial

Examiner made at the hearing and finds that no

prejudicial error was committed. The rulings are

hereby affirmed. The Board has considered the In-

termediate Report, the exceptions and brief, and

the entire record in the case, and hereby adopts the

findings, conclusions, and recommendations of the

Trial Examiner only to the extent consistent here-

with, and as specifically indicated in an opinion

which shall hereafter be issued.

(1) In the absence of any exceptions, we adopt

the Trial Examiner's conclusion that the Respond-

ent Union's threats and promises of benefits and

inducements to charging party Lewis to get him to

withdraw his charge in this case violated Section 8

(b) (1) (A) of the Act

(2) In disagreement with the Trial Examiner

and for reasons to be set forth in the opinion to

issue hereafter, we conclude that the Respondent

Employers have violated Section 8 (a) (3) and (1)

of the Act, and the Respondent Unions have vio-

lated Section 8 (b) (2) and (1) (A) of the Act,

by executing and maintaining in effect the hiring

provisions of their contract."^

' As only the charge against Respondent Local
242 was filed within six months of the execution of
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(3) Also in disagreement with the Trial Exam-

iner, we find that the implementation of the unlaw-

ful contract in the rejection of Lewds' continuous

applications for employment w^as an imfair labor

practice, and that the Respondent Unions thereby

violated Section 8 (b) (2) and (1) (A) of the Act

and the Respondent Employers thereby ^iolated

Section 8 (a) (3) and (1) of the Act/

The Remedy
Having found that the Respondents, and each of

them, have violated the Act, we shall order that they

cease and desist therefrom and take cei-tain affirm-

ative action in order to effectuate the policies of

the Act.

It has been found that the Respondents discrim-

inated against Cyrus Lems. The nature of the

employment situation in this industry is such that

no order of reinstatement is possible. Furthermore,

as indicated above, this record does not specify the

number of instances or the amoimts of actual loss

of employment by Lewis. Accordingly, the amounts

of back pay due to him shall be computed in com-

pliance proceedings. The back pay period shall

begin March 15, 1956, when Lewis appeared at the

the contract in question, our finding against the

other Respondents is limited to the maintenance of
the hiring provisions of the contract rather than
their execution. Our remedial action herein is in no
way affected by this difference.

^ ]\rember Murdoch concurs in the finding of a
violation with respect to Lewis for the reasons indi-

cated in his attached opinion.
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Unions' hiring hall in search of employment.^ We
shall order the various Respondents to notify

Charging Party Lewis that they have no objection

to his immediate employment.* The back pay lia-

bility of any Respondent shall be tolled 5 days

after it serves such written notice on Charging

Party Lewis. Back joay shall be computed in accord-

ance with the formula stated in F. W. Woolworth

Company, 90 NLRB 289.

ORDER
Upon the entire record in this case, and pursuant

to Section 10 (c) of the National Labor Relations

Act, as amended, the National Labor Relations

Board hereby orders that:

1. The Respondents Mountain Pacific Chapter

of the Associated General Contractors, Inc.; The

Associated General Contractors of America, Seattle

Chapter, Inc.; and Associated General Contractors

of America, Tacoma Chapter, and their officers,

agents, successors and assigns, shall:

(a) Cease and desist from:

(1) Performing, maintaining, or othermse giv-

ing eifect to jorovisions of any agreement with the

^ As the Trial Examiner did not find that the Re-
spondents discriminated against Lewis, the period
from the date of the Intermediate Report to the
date of the Order herein shall, in accordance with
our usual practice, be excluded in computing the
amount of back pay due him. Utah Construction
Co., 95 NLRB 196.

*The Babcock & Wilcox Company, 110 NLRB
2116.
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Respondent Unions or any other labor organization,

which unlawfully condition the hire of applicants

for employment, or the retention of employees in

employment with any employer, upon clearance or

approval by the Respondent Unions or any other

labor organization, except as authorized by the pro-

viso to Section 8 (a) (3) of the Act;

(2) In any like or related manner encouraging

membership in the Respondent Unions, or in any

other labor organization, or otherwise interfering

with, restraining, or coercing employees in the

exercise of rights guaranteed in Section 7 of the

Act, except in a manner permitted by Section 8 (a)

(3) of the Act:

(b) Take the following affirmative action, which

the Board finds will effectuate the policies of the

Act:

(1) Make w^iiole Cyras Lewis for any loss of pay

he may have suffered by reason of the discrimina-

tion against him, as provided in the Section herein

entitled "The Remedy'';

(2) Preserve and make available to the Board or

its agents upon request, for examination and copy-

ing, all payroll records, social security payment

records, timecards, personnel records and reports,

and all other records necessary to analyze the

amounts of back pay due under the terms of this

Order

;

(3) Post at their offices, and at the offices of each

employer member of the Respondents, in conspicu-
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ous places, including all places where notices to

employees or prospective employees are customarily

posted, copies of the notice attached hereto as Ap-

pendix A.^ Copies of said notice, to be furnished by

the Regional Director for the Nineteenth Region,

shall, after being duly signed by representatives of

Mountain Pacific, Seattle and Tacoma Chapters, be

posted by them immediately upon receipt thereof

and maintained by them for sixty (60) consecutive

days thereafter. Reasonable steps shall be taken by

Respondent Associations and their employer mem-
bers to insure that said notices are not altered, de-

faced, or covered by any other material

;

(4) Notify Cyrus Lewis and the Respondent

Unions, in writing, that they have no objection to

his employment, or to the employment of any other

employees who are not members of the Respondent

Unions or any other labor organization;

(5) Notify the Regional Director for the Nine-

teenth Region, in writing, within ten (10) days

from the date of issuance of the opinion herein,

what steps they have taken to comply herewith.

II. The Respondents International Hodcarriers,

Building and Common Laborers Union of America,

Local No. 242, AFL-CIO, and Western Washington

District Council of International Hodcarriers,

^ In the event this Order is enforced by a decree
of a United States Court of Appeals, there shall be
substituted for the words ^^ Pursuant to a Decision
and Order ^' the words, "Pursuant to a Decree of
the United States Court of Appeals, Enforcing an
Order."
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Building and Common Laborers Union of America,

AFL-CIO, and their officers, representatives, and

agents, shall:

(a) Cease and desist from:

(1) Performing, maintaining, or other\vise giv-

ing effect to provisions of any agreement with the

Respondent Employers or with any other employer

within the meaning of the Act, which unla\\^ully

condition the hire of applicants for employment, or

the retention of employees in employment with any

employer upon clearance or approval hy the Re-

spondent Unions, except as authorized hy the pro-

viso to Section 8 (a) (3) of the Act;

(2) Causing or attempting to cause the Respond-

ent Employers, or any other employer, to discrim-

inate against employees or applicants for employ-

ment in violation of Section 8 (a) (3) of the Act;

(3) In any like or related manner restraining or

coercing employees in the exercise of the rights

guaranteed in Section 7 of the Act, except in a

manner peniaitted by Section 8 (a) (3) of the Act:

(b) Take the fojlowinu' affirmative action, which

the Board finds will effectuate the policies of the

Act:

(1) ^fake vrhole Cyrus Lewis for any loss of pay

he may have suffered by reason of the discrimina-

tion against him, as provided in tlie Section herein

entitled "The Remedy '^

(2) Xotify Cyrus Lewis and the Respondent Em-
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ployers, in wiiting, that they have no objection to

his employment, or to the employment of any other

employees ^Yho are not members of the Respondent

Unions or any other labor organization;

(3) Post at their offices, in conspicuous places,

including all places where notices to employees or

prospective employees are customarily posted, cop-

ies of the notice attached hereto as Appendix B.^

Copies of said notice, to be furnished by the Re-

gional Director for the Nineteenth Region, shall,

after being duly signed by representatives of the

Respondent Unions, be posted by them inmiediately

upon receipt thereof and maintained by them for

sixty (60) consecutive days thereafter. Reasonable

steps shall be taken by them to insure that said no-

tices are not altered, defaced, or covered by any

other material;

(4) Notify the Regional Director for the Nine-

teenth Region in wT.4ting, within ten (10) days from

the date of issuance of the opinion herein, what

steps they have taken to comply herewith.

Dated, Washington, D. C, December 14, 1957.

BOYD LEEDOM, Chairman,

PHILIP RAY RODGERS, Meml^er,

STEPHEN S. BEAN, Member,

JOSEPH ALTON JENKINS,
Member,

[Seal] National Labor Relations Board.

See footnote 18 above.
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APPENDIX A

Notice to All Employees of and Applicants For

Employment With Associated General Con-

tractors of America, Inc., Moimtain Pacific,

Seattle, and Tacoma Chapters, and Their Con-

stituent Members. Pursuant to a Decision

and Order of the National Labor Relationsi

Board, and in order to effectuate the policies

of the National Labor Relations Act, we hereby

notify you that:

We Will Not perform, maintain, or give effect to

the provisions of any agreement mth International

Hodcarriers, Building and Common Laborers

Union of America, Local No. 242, AFL-CIO, West-

em Washington District Council, International

Hodcarriers, Building and Common Laborers

Union of America, AFL-CIO, or with any other

labor organization, which unlawfully conditions the

hire of applicants for employment^ or the reten-

tion of employees in employment with any em-

ployer, upon clearance or approval by the afore-

mentioned labor organizations, except as author-

ized by Section 8 (a) (3) of the Act.

We Will Not in any like or related manner en-

courage membership in the aforementioned labor

organizations, or in any other labor organization,

or otherwise interfere with, restrain, or coerce em-

ployees in the exercise of the rights guaranteed

them in Section 7 of the Act, except in a manner

permitted by Section 8 (a) (3) of the Act.

We Will make whole Cyrus Lewis for any loss



Mountain Pacific Chap, of A.O.C, et al. 53

of pay suffered as a result of the discrimination

against him.

All our employees and prospective employees are

free to become, to remain, or to refrain from be-

coming, or remaining, members of the abovo-named

Unions or any other labor organization, except to

the extent that this right may be affected by an

agreement in conformity with Section 8 (a) (3) of

the Act.

Mountain Pacific Chapter, The Associated G-eneral

Con'

Bated

Contractors of America, Inc.

By
(Representative) (Title)

Seattle Chapter, The Associated Greneral Contrac-

tors of America, Inc.

Dated

By
(Representative) (Title)

Tacoma Chapter, The Associated General Contrac-

tors of America, Inc.

Dated

By
(Representative) (Title)

This notice must remain posted for 60 days from

the date hereof, and must not be altered, defaced,

or covered by any other material.
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APPEXDIX B

Notice to All Employees of and Apx^licants For

Employment \\ii\i Associated General Con-

tractors of America, Inc., Momitain Pacific,

Seattle, and Tacoma Chapters, or Their Con-

stituent Members, Pursuant to a Decision and

Order of the Xational Labor Relations Board,

and in order to effectuate the policies of the

National La])or Relations Act, we hereby notify

you that:

TTe "Will Xot perform, maintain, or give effect

to the provisions of any agreement T\'ith Mountain

Pacific Chapter, Seattle Chapter, or Tacoma

Chapter, of The Associated Greneral Contractors

of America, Inc. or with any other employer, which

unlawfully condition the hire of applicants for em-

ployment, or the retention of employees in employ-

ment with any employer, upon clearance or ap-

proval ])y any labor organization, except as author-

ized by Section 8 (a) (3) of the Act.

We Will Xot caTise or attempt to cause the

a])ove-named Employers or any other employer to

discriminate against em]iloyees or applicants for

employment in violation of Section 8 (a) (3) of

the Act.

We Will Xot in any like or related manner re-

strain or coerce employees in the exercise of the

rights guaranteed them in Section 7 of the Act,

except in a manner permitted by Section 8 (a) (3)

of the Act.
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We Will make whole Cyrus Lewis for any loss

of pay suffered as a result of the discrimination

against him.

International Hodcarriers, Building and Common
Laborers Union of America, Local No. 242,

AFL-CIO,

(liabor Organization.)

Dated

By
(Representative) (Title)

Western Washington District Council, Interna-

tional Llodcarriers, Building and Common La-

borers LTnion of America, AFL-CIO,

(Labor Organization.)

Dated

By
(Representative) (Title)

This notice must remain posted for 60' days from

the date hereof, and must not be altered, defaced,

or covered by any other material.

Abe Murdock, Member, dissenting in part and con-

curring in part:

Contrary to the majority, the main issue in this

case is not a threshold matter. For more than

seven years it has been well established Board law,

judicially approved in every Circuit Court of Ap-

peals in which the issue was raised, that an ex-

clusive nondiscriminatory hiring hall is not per se
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unlawful.^ Now for the first time, in a sweeping

decision ignoring all Board and Court precedents,

the majority holds that such a contract is unlawful.

The importance and far reaching consequences of

the majority's decision cannot, in my opinion, be

overestimated. Nor only does it silently overrule

all previous decisions of the Board, but it is con-

trary to decisions of the Ninth, Sixth, and Third

Circuit Courts of Appeals.^ I have in other deci-

sions during the past year expressed my concern

that the majority was apparently by-passing prece-

dent in hiring hall cases.^ What seemed implicit

in those decisions is made explicit here. I do not

believe that the legality of hiring halls can be

decided today by a majority of this Board as

though no other decision of the Board or of the

courts existed in this area. The correct rule of

law with regard to exclusive hiring halls, deriving

from the Board "s decisions in National Union of

Marine Cooks and Stewards (Pacific American

Shipowners Association), supra, and Hunkin-Con-

key Construction Company, supra, can be found in

decisions of three Circuit Courts of Appeals.

"" National Union of Marine Cooks and Stewards
(Pacific American Shipowners Association) 90
NLRB 1099 ; Hunkin-Conkey Construction Com-
pany 95 NLRB 433. See, also, court decisions cited

below.

^ See decisions cited below.

^ See my dissenting opinions in The Marley Com-
pany, 117 NLRB 107, at pages 115-122; Koppers
Company, Inc., 117 NLRB 1863 at pages 1872-

1877.
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In Eiclileay Corporation v. N.L.R.B., 206 P. 2d

799, 803, the Court of Appeals for the Third Cir-

cuit stated the principle as follows:

We agree with Eichleay that ^The factor in a hir-

ing hall arrangement which makes the device an

unfair labor practice is the agreement to hire only

union members referred to the employer.' Del E.

We]^]) Construction Co. v. N.L.R.B. 8 Cir., 1952, 196

F. 2d 841, 845. A referral system is not per se

improper, absent evidence that the union milaw-

fully discriminated in supplying the company with

personnel. N.L.R.B. vs. Swinerton, 9 Circ, 1953,

202 F. 2d 511; Hunkin-Conkey Construction Co.,

95 N.L.R.B. 433 (1951).

In the Swinerton case, supra, at page 514, the

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit held that

the burden of proving discrimination by the union

in the administration of a referral system was on

the General Counsel:

An employer violates Section 8 (a) (3) and (1)

of the Act if he requires membership in a labor

organization as a condition precedent—to employ-

ment. N.LoR.B. V. J. R. Cantrell Company, 201 F.

2d (C.A. 9). The Board has contended that adop-

tion of a system of union referral or clearance also

violates tJie Act absent ^guarantee that the union

does not discriminate against non-members in the

issua,nce of referrals.' We do not believe that

National Union of Marine Cooks and Stewards 90

NLRB 1099 supports this view. Although it was

there noted that the provisions of an applicable
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labor contract prohibited such discrimination, the

Board did not indicate that a referral system was

per se improper absent a ^guarantee' of non-dis-

crimination. Such a rule would in practical effect

shift the burden of proof on the question of dis-

crimination from the General Counsel of the Board

to the respondent. The rule which we deem proper

was recognized by the Board in Hunkin-Conkey

Const. Co., 95 NLRB 433 where it was said that

an agreement that hiring of employees be done

only through a particular union office does not vio-

late the Act ^absent evidence that the union unlaw-

fully discriminated in supplying the company with

personnel.' 95 NLRB at 435; Cf. Del E. Webb
Const. Co. V. N.L.R.B., 196 F. 2d 841, 845." (Em-

phasis supplied.)

The doctrine of the above cases has been cited

with approval by the Court of Appeals for the

Sixth Circuit in N.L.R.B. v. F. H. McGraw & Co.,

206 F. 2d 635, 640.

It should, it seems to me, be perfectly clear from

the decided cases that the Union under this con-

tract w^as not free to pick and choose on any basis

it sees fit. The law requires that an exclusive hir-

ing hall be administered in a nondiscriminatory

manner. The real issue here is whether, as the

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit pointed out,

the burden of proof on the question of discrimina-

tion mil be shifted from the General Counsel to

the Union administering a hiring hall. In the

instant case the majority presumes that the Union
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will administer an othei^vise lawful contract in an

unlawful manner. This presumption is made con-

clusive unless the contract includes ^

^objective cri-

teria'^ which will explain and justify "the exclu-

sive aspect of hiring hall referrals/' Only there-

after, I take it, will the burden of in'oof be shoul-

dered hy the General Counsel to establish that the

Union nevertheless administered the contract in a

discriminatory manner. But the Statute places

the burden of proof squarely on the General Coun-

sel to establish in every case that a respondent

before this Board has engaged in an unfair labor

practice. The majority, indeed, admits that the

statute does permit an exclusive hiring hall, point-

ing to the salutary ol^jective served by such insti-

tutions and a statement by Senator Taft that the

closed shop provision of the Taft Hartley Act was

not aimed at the hiring hall of the type admin-

istered in the maritime industry. But the major-

ity would add something new to the lav/ as imder-

stood by Senator Taft. The majority now says that

a nondiscriminatory hiring hall, which the Board,

the courts, and Senator Taft regarded as perfectly

legal, "runs counter to the express proscription

of the Statute" unless "objective" standards are

included in the hiring hall contract. If the major-

ity is riglit in the conclusion that mere exclusive

referral by a union constitutes discrimination

within the meaning of Section 8 (a) (3), then the

Board, the courts, and Senator Taft must have

been wrong. If a hiring hall results in unlawful

discrimination because, as the majority finds, '^the
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Union is arbitrary master and is contractually

guaranteed to remain so/' I fail to see liow the

inclusion of "objective'' criteria in the contract

can remove the element of discrimination or the

encouragement of union membership. Under any

circumstances the employer would have surren-

dered "all hiring authority" and the Union would

be free under the contract to refer or not to refer

applicants regardless of any expressed "objective"

criteria. I am as much concerned as is the major-

ity that purported nondiscriminatory hiring halls

be nondiscriminatory in fact. But I do not believe

that this Board has the power to hold, on the one

hand, that such conduct by a union and an em-

ployer is lawful but on the other hand, that it is

imlawful unless the contract contains words indi-

cating an intention by the union to administer the

contract lawfully. This is as much as to say that

an employer violates Section 8 (a) (3) of the Act

merely by discharging a union member unless at

the same time he states that the discharge is for

economic reasons. My imd^rstanding of the law is

that the Greneral Counsel must prove by a pre-

ponderance of the testimony that the discharge was

intended to encourage or discourage union mem-
bership. Absent such proof, no unfair labor prac-

tice has been committed whether or not economic

reasons were assigned by the employer for the dis-

charge at the time it occurred. My view of the

law in this resi)ect is so well settled that it needs

no citation of authority. In my opinion, the ma-

jority's novel approach to the hiring hall issue
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amounts to nothing more than a finding* that an

otherwise lawful contract is unlawful miless the

parties agree to include words expressing their

lawful motivation. To my knowledge this is the

first time that the Board or any court has found

an unfair labor practice solely on the ground that

the respondent failed to express a lawful motiva-

tion at the time the alleged unfair la]3or practice

occurred.

A¥hile the majority states that their decision '4s

not to be taken as outlawing all hiring hall ar-

rangements," I must note that the requirement of

'^objective'' criteria does not provide unions and

employers with a precise test of a lawful contract.

The majority holds that the standards for referral

of applicants are "matters primarily for the em-

ployer and the union to negotiate and settle" so

long as they fall within the majority's notion of

'^typical objective standards." But the majority

is free in the very next case to hold that the union

and employer have incorporated insufficient objec-

tive criteria or that the criteria adopted by the

parties is not, in the majority's opinion, typical.

Thus, wholly apart from the adverse impact of this

decision on contracts which have been already made
in good faith in accord with ]:>reexisting Board and

Court law, the majority's decision means, in effect,

that the parties to future collective bargaining

agreements, faithfully following the majority's rule

as to the type of provisions which they must in-

clude in their hiring hall contract, may neverthe-
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less be found to have violated this Statute because

they guessed wrong.

In my opinion the statement of Senator Taft,

quoted in the majority's decision, is entirely ac-

curate and directly supports existing Board and

court precedents. The last sentence of the quoted

statement is particularly applicable to the major-

ity's conclusion that the presence of "objective cri-

teria" in a hiring hall contract is indispensable

to its legality. Neither the law [Taft Hartley Act]

nor these decisions [Board and court decisions re-

lating to hiring halls] forbid hiring halls, even

hiring halls operated by the imions, as long as they

are not so operated as to create a closed shop with

all of the abuses possible under such an arrange-

ment, including discrimination against employees,

prospective employees, members of imion minority

groups, and operation of a closed union. (Empha-

sis supplied.) tSTothing in Senator Taft's state-

ment suggests or permits the conclusion that hir-

ing halls without objective criteria are somehow

evil and contrary to the Statute, but that hiring

halls with such criteria are perfectly law^ful as the

majority finds. Senator Taft was in agreement

with pre^dous Board and court decisions to the

eifect that v/herep the General Counsel had proved

that an ostensible nondiscriminatory hiring hall

was, in fact, operated as a closed shop or in an

otherwise discriminatory manner, the practice was

unlawful. I find myself entirely in accord with

these precedents and Senator Taft.
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I would therefore find that the contract in this

case is not per se unlawful, but that the union's

discriminatory practices under it are unlawful, in-

cluding the coercion and discrimination as to Lewis.

Moimtain Pacific, Seattle, and Tacoma Chapters of

the Associated Gfeneral Contractors of America,

Inc., 117 NLRB 1319.

Dated Washington, D. C, Dec. 14, 1957.

ABE MURDOCK, Member,

National Labor Relations Board

[Endorsed] : No. 15966. United States Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. National Labor

Relations Board, Petitioner and Respondent, vs.

Mountain Pacific Chapter of The Associated Gen-

eral Contractors, Inc., The Associated General

Contractors of America, Seattle Chapter, Inc., and

Associated General Contractors of America, Ta-

coma Chapter, International Hodcarriers, Build-

ing and Common Laborers Union of America, Local

No. 242, AFL-CIO, and Western Washington Dis-

trict Council of International Hodcarriers, Build-

ing and Common Laborers Union of America,

AFL-CIO, Respondents and Petitioners. Tran-

script of Record. Petition to Enforce and Peti-

tions to Review Order of The National Labor Re-

lations Board.

Filed: June 2, 1958.

/s/ PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.
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United States Court of Appeals

For The Ninth Circuit

No. 15966

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,
Petitioner,

V.

MOUNTAIN PACIFIC CHAPTER OF THE
ASSOCIATED GENERAL CONTRACTORS,
INC., THE ASSOCIATED GENERAL CON-
TRACTORS OP AMERICA, SEATTLE
CHAPTER, INC., and ASSOCIATED GEN-
ERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA,
TACOMA CHAPTER, INTERNATIONAL
HODCARRIERS, BUILDING AND COM-
MON LABORERS UNION OF AMERICA,
LOCAL NO. 242, AFL-CIO, and WESTERN
WASHINGTON DISTRICT COUNCIL OF
INTERNATIONAL HODCARRIERS,
BUILDING AND COMMON LABORERS
UNION OF AMERICA. AFL-CIO,

Respondents.

PETITION FOR ENFORCEMENT OF AN
ORDER OF THE NATIONAL LABOR RE-
LATIONS BOARD

To the Honorable, the Judges of the United States

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit:

The National Labor Relations Board, pursuant

to the National Labor Relations Act, as amended
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(61 Stat. 136, 29 U. S. C, Sees. 151, et seq.), here-

inafter called the Act, respeotfully i>etitions this

Court for the enforcement of its order dated De-

cember 14, 1957. The consolidated proceeding re-

sulting in said order is known upon the records of

the Board as Case Nos. 19-CA-1374, 19-CB-424 and

19-CB-445.

In support of this petition the Board respectfully

shows

:

(1) Respondents, Mountain Pacific Chapter of

the Associated General Contractors, Inc., The As-

sociated General Contractors of America, Seattle

Chapter, Inc., and Associated General Contractors

of America, Tacoma Chapter (hereinafter called

Respondent Employers), are corporate associations

of employers engaged in business in the State of

Washington, and Respondents, International Hod-

carriers, Building and Common Laborers Union

of America, Local No. 242, AFL-CIO, and Western

Washington District Council of International Hod-

carriers, Building and Common Laborers Union of

America, AFL-CIO (hereinafter called Respond-

ent Unions), are labor organizations engaged in

promoting and protecting the interests of their

members in said state, within this judicial circuit

where the unfair labor practices occurred. This

Court therefore has jurisdiction of this petition

by virtue of Section 10 (e) of the National Labor

Relations Act, as amended.

(2) Upon due proceedings had before the Board
in said matter, the Board on December 14, 1957,
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duly stated its findings of fact and conclusions of

law, and issued an Order directed to the Respond-

ent Employers and their officers, agents, successors

and assigns, and Respondent Unions, and their

officers, representatives and agents. On the same

date, the Board's Decision and Order was served

upon Respondents by sending a copy thereof post-

paid, bearing Government frank, by registered

mail, to Respondents' Counsel.

(3) Pursuant to Section 10 (e) of the National

Labor Relations Act, as amended, and pursuant to

Rule 34 (7) (a) of this Court, the Board is certi-

fying and filing with this Court a certified list of

all documents, transcripts of testimony, exhibits

and other material comprising the entire record of

the proceeding before the Board upon which the

said Order was entered, which transcript includes

the pleadings, testimony and evidence, findings of

fact, conclusions of law, and the Order of the Board

sought to be enforced.

Wherefore, the Board prays this Honorable

Court that it cause notice of the filing of this peti-

tion and transcript to l^e served upon Respondents

and that this Court take jurisdiction of the pro-

ceeding and of the questions determined therein

and make and enter upon the pleadings, testimony

and evidence, and the proceedings set forth in the

transcript and upon tJie Order made thereupon a

decree enforcing in whole said Order of the Board,

and requiring Respondent Employers and their

officers, agents, successors and assigns and Re-
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spondent Unions and their officers, representatives

and agents, to comply therewith.

Dated at Washington, D. C. this 7th day of

AprU, 1958.

/s/ THOMAS J. McDERMOTT,
Associate General Counsel,

National Labor Relations Board.

[Endorsed]: Filed April 9, 1958. Paul R
O'Brien, Clerk.

[Title of Court of Appeals and Cause.]

ANSWER AND PETITION FOR REVIEW OF
THE ASSOCIATED GENERAL CONTRAC-
TORS OF AMERICA, SEATTLE CHAP-
TER, INC.

To the Honorable Judges of the Ninth Circuit

Court of Appeals:

The Associated General Contractors of America,

Seattle Chapter, Inc., hereby answers the petition

for enforcement heretofore filed by the National

Labor Relations Board, and petitions for a review

by this court of the proceedings of the National

Labor Relations Board and the order of said board

in this matter.

Answering the allegations of the petition for

enforcement, this respondent alleges:

1. This respondent. Associated General Con-

tractors of America, Seattle Chapter, Inc., is a

Washington corporation, functioning as a business
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association to advance tlie common good of its

members, and is not otherwise engaged in business.

Its activities are carried on within the Mnth Cir-

cuit. Excef)t as admitted herein, this respondent

denies the allegations of paragraph 1 or denies

that it has knowledge or inforaiation sufficient

upon which to form a belief as to the truth or

falsity thereof,

2. Answ^ering paragraph 2, this respondent ad-

mits the entry of an order by the National Labor

Relations Board under date of December 14, 1957,

and admits that the same was served upon it, but

denies that said order was legal or valid.

3. This respondent has no knowledge as to the

allegations of paragraph 3.

Petition For Review

This respondent petitions this court to review

the order of the ]Srational Labor Relations Board

in the consolidated cases, l>efore designated cases

Nos. 19-CA-1374; 19-CB-4:24, and 19-CB-445, inso-

far as said order was directed against this respond-

ent.

1. Tins petition for review is made pursuant to

the provisions of subparagraph (f) of Section 160,

Title 29, United States Code.

2. This respondent alleges that the transcript

W'hich wdll be filed by the National Labor Rela-

tions Board in connection with its petition for

enforcement will be the same transcript as would

be involved in this petition for review.
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3. The order of the National Labor Relations

Board is invalid and erroneous for the following

reasons:

This respondent is not subject to the jurisdic-

tion of the National Labor Relations Board and

is not, and at no time material hereto was, an em-

ployer within the meaning of the National Labor

Relations Act, nor was it engaged in commerce.

The procedure was not commenced within the

time limited by law, particularly Section 10 (b) of

the National Labor Relations Act.

It was not established that this respondent en-

gaged in any unfair labor practice.

The findings of the National Labor Relations

Board do not support the order which was entered

against this respondent.

The order of the National Labor Relations Board

is contrary to law.

Wherefore, this respondent prays that the order

of the National Labor Relations Board be reviewed

and set aside as to it, and that the petition for

enforcement be denied.

LYCETTE, DIAMOND &
SYLVESTER,

By LYLE L. IVERSEN,
Attorneys for Associated General

Contractors of America, Seattle.

[Endorsed]: Eiled April 22, 1958. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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[Title of Court of Appeals and Cause.]

ANSWER AND PETITION FOR REVIEW OF
INTERNATIONAL HODCARRIERS,
BUILDING AND COMMON LABORERS
UNION OF AMERICA, LOCAL NO. 242,

AFL-CIO, WESTERN WASHINGTON DIS-

TRICT COUNCIL OF INTERNATIONAL
HODCARRIERS, BUILDING AND COM-
MON LABORERS UNION OF AMERICA,
AFL-CIO

To the Honorable Judges of the Ninth Circuit

Court of Appeals

:

The International Hodcarriers, Building and

Common Laborers Union of America, Local No.

242, AFL-CIO, Western Washington District

Council of International Hodcarriers, Building and

Common Laborers Union of America, AFL-CIO,

hereby answer the petition for enforcement here-

tofore filed bv the National Labor Relations Board,

and petition for a review by this court of the pro-

ceedings of the National Labor Relations Board

and the order of said board in this matter.

Answering the allegations of the petition for en-

forcement, these respondents allege:

1. These respondents admit that they are labor

organizations engaged in promoting and protecting

the interests of their members in the State of

Washington within this judicial circuit. Except

as admitted herein, these respondents deny the

allegations of paragraph 1 or deny that they have
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knowledge or information sufficient upon which

to fonn a belief as to the truth or falsity thereof.

2. Answering paragraph 2, these respondents

admit the entry of an order by the National Labor

Relations Board under date of December 14, 1957,

and admit that the same was served upon them, but

deny that said order was legal or valid.

3. These respondents have no knowledge as to

the allegations of paragraph 3.

Petition For Review

These respondents petition this court to review

the order of the National Labor Relations Board

in the consolidated cases, before designated cases

Nos. 19-CA-1374; 19-CB-424, and 19-CB-445, inso-

far as said order was directed against these re-

spondents.

1. This petition for review is made pursuant to

the provisions of subparagraph (f) of Section 160,

Title 29, United States Code.

2. These respondents allege that the transcript,

exhibits and decisions of the National Labor Rela-

tions Board, which is sought to be reviewed will

necessarily be filed by the National Labor Rela-

tions Board in connection with its petition for en-

forcement and will be the same transcript as would

be involved in this petition for review.

3. The order of the National Labor Relations

Board is invalid and erroneous for the following

reasons

:
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The procedure was not commenced within the

time limited by law, particularly Section 10 (b) of

the National Labor Relations Act.

It was not established that these respondents en-

gaged in any unfair labor practice.

The findings of the National Labor Relations

Board do not support the order which was entered

against these respondents.

The order of the National Labor Relations Board

is contrary to law.

Wherefore, these respondents pray that the order

of the National Labor Relations Board be re-

viewed and set aside as to them, and that the peti-

tion for enforcement be denied.

/s/ L. PRESLEY GILL,

Attorney for International Hodcarriers, Building

and Common Laborers Union of America,

Local No. 242, AFL-CIO, Western Washing-

ton District Council of International Hodcar-

riers, Building and Common Laborers of

America, AFL-CIO.

[Endorsed]: Filed April 28, 1958. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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[Title of Court of Appeals and Cause.]

ANSWER AND PETITION FOR REVIEW OF
MOUNTAIN PACIFIC CHAPTER OF THE
ASSOCIATED GENERAL CONTRACTORS,
INC.

To the Honorable Judges of the Ninth Circuit

Court of Appeals:

The Mountain Pacific Chapter of the Associated

General Contractors, Inc. hereby answers the peti-

tion for enforcement heretofore filed by the Na-

tional Labor Relations Board, and petitions for a

review by this Court of the proceedings of the

National Labor Relations Board and the order of

said Board in this matter.

Answering the allegations of the petition for

enforcement, this respondent alleges:

1. This respondent, Mountain Pacific Chapter

of the Associated General Contractors, Inc., is a

Washington corporation, functioning as a lousi-

ness association to advance the common good of

its members, and is not otherwise engaged in busi-

ness. Its activities are carried on within the Ninth

Circuit. Except as admitted herein, this respond-

ent denies the allegations of Paragraph 1 or denies

that it has knowledge or information sufficient

upon which to form a belief as to the truth or fal-

sity thereof.

2. Answering Paragraph 2, this respondent ad-

mits the entry of an Order by the National Labor
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Relations Board under date of December 14, 1957,

and admits that the same was served upon it, but

denies that said Order was legal or valid.

3. This respondent has no knowledge as to the

allegations of Paragraph 3,

Petition For Review

This respondent petitions this Court to review

the Order of the National Labor Relations Board

in the consolidated cases, before designated cases

Nos. 19-CA-1374; 19-CB-424; and 19-CB-445, inso-

far as said Order was directed against this re-

spondent.

1. This petition for review is made pursuant to

the provisions of subparagraph (f) of Section

160, Title 29, United States Code.

2. This respondent alleges that the transcript

which will be filed by the National Labor Rela-

tions Board in connection with its petition for en-

forcement will be the same transcript as would be

involved in this petition for review.

3. The Order of the National Labor Relations

Board is invalid and erroneous for the following

reasons

:

This respondent is not subject to the jurisdiction

of the National Labor Relations Board and is not,

and at no time material hereto was, an employer

within the meaning of the National Labor Rela-

tions Act, nor was it engaged in commerce.

The procedure was not commenced within the
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time limited by law, particularly Section 10 (b)

of the National Labor Relations Act.

It was not established that this respondent en-

gaged in any unfair labor practice. That it was

established that neither this respondent nor its

members have any business transactions with the

Building and Common Laborers Union of America,

Local No. 242, AFL-CIO, or its members.

The findings of the National Labor Relations

Board do not support the Order which was entered

against this respondent.

The order of the National Labor Relations Board

is contrary to law.

Wherefore, this respondent prays that the Order

of the National Labor Relations Board be reviewed

and set aside as to it, and that the petition for

enforcement be denied.

ELLIOTT, LEE, CARNEY &
THOMAS,

/s/ By ELVIN P. CARNEY,

Attorneys for the Mountain Pacific Chapter of the

Associated General Contractors, Inc.

[Endorsed]: Filed April 28, 1958. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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[Title of Court of Appeals and Cause.]

STATEMENT OP POINTS ON WHICH
PETITIONER INTENDS TO RELY

To tlie Honorable, the Judges of the United States

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit:

The National Labor Relations Board, petitioner

herein, in accordance with the rules of this Court,

hereby states the following as the points on which

it intends to rely herein:

I. The Board validly determined that the Asso-

ciated General Contractors Chapters and the Unions

respectively violated Section 8 (a) (3) and (1)

and 8 (b) (1) (A) and (3) by executing and main-

taining in effect the terms of their agreement rela-

tive to hiring.

II. Substantial evidence supports the Board's

conclusion that the Associated General Contractors

Chapters and the Unions, respectively, violated

Section 8 (a) (3) and (1) and 8 (b) (1) (A) and

(2) of the Act by discriminating and causing the

Chapters to discriminate against the jol^ applicant

Lewis, and that Local 242 further violated Section

8 (b) (1) (A) of the Act by threats, promises and

inducements to withdraw his charge.

Dated at Washington, D. C. this 16th day of

May, 1958.

/s/ MARCEL MALLET-PREVOST,
Assistant General Counsel,

National Labor Relations Board.

[Endorsed]: Filed May 22, 1958. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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Before the National Labor Relations Board

Nineteenth Region

In the Matter of:

Case No. 19-CA-137^^-Moimtain Pacific Chapter;

Seattle Chapter; and Tacoma Chapter of Asso-

ciated General Contractors of America, Inc.

and Cyrus Lewis.

Case No, 19-CB-424— International Hod Carriers,

Building and Common Laborers Union, Local

No. 242, AFL-CIO and Cyrus Lewis.

Case No. 19-CB-445—Western Washington District

Council International Hod Carriers, Building

and Common Laborers of America and Cyrus

Lewis.

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

Room 407, United States Courthouse, Seattle,

Washington, Thursday, October 25, 1956.

Pursuant to notice, the above-entitled matter

came on for hearing at 10 o'clock, a.m.

Before: Herman Marx, Esq., Trial Examiner.

Appearances: Melton Boyd, Esq„, 407 United

States Courthouse, Seattle, Washington, appearing

on behalf of General Counsel. Lyle L. Iverson, Esq.,

of the firm, of Lycette, Diamond and Sylvester, 800'

Hoge Building, Seattle, Washington, appearing on

behalf of the Seattle and Tacoma Chapters of the

Associated Contractors of America. Arvin P. Car-

ney, Esq., of the firm of Elliott, Lee fe Carney, 555

Dexter Horton Building, Seattle, Washington, ap-

pearing on behalf of Mountain Pacific Chapter of
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the Associated General Contractors of America.

Roy E. Jackson, appearing on behalf of the Build-

ing and Common Laborers Union of America, Local

No. 242, AFL-CIO. [2]^

Proceedings
*****

COLTON HARPER

a witness called by and on behalf of the General

Counsel, being first duly sworn, was examined and

testified as follows : [11]

Direct Examination

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Your name is what?

A. Colton Harper.

Q. Your occupation is what?

A. Manager, Seattle Chapter, Associated Gen-

eral Contractors.

Q. You have been manager for how long?

A. One year.

Q. Prior to that time what capacity did you

have with the Chapter?

A. I was assistant manager. ***** ^2]
Trial Examiner: Are you going to prove any

specific membership of any concerns ?

Mr. Boyd : We have no such purpose in this pro-

ceeding. I believe when we g^\ to the place of sub-

mitting the case it will appear that that was not

necessary.

Trial Examiner: That may be. Do you contem-

* Page numbers appearing at top of page of Reporter's Tran-

script of Record.
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(Testimony of Colton Harper.)

plate any ^vooi of application by the charging

party, Mr. Lewis, for employment at any members?

Mr. Boyd: No. The evidence will disclose him

seeking work at the union hall. [17]
•X- -jf -x- 4e- 4e-

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Yon have produced and I

have had marked and I hand you at this time two

documents marked General Counsers. Exhibit No. 4,

being in duplicate. What do you identify those [18]

as being"?

A. Those are the existing agreements between

Western Washington District Council, Interna-

tional, Moimtain Pacific, Seattle and Tacoma Chap-

ters, of the Associated General Contractors of

America.
^- * * * *

(The document above referred to heretofore

marked General Counsers Exhibit No. 4 was

received in evidence.)

[See page 178.]

Trial Examiner: One of them is a duplicate.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : The recitation at the top

indicates that this is an agreement in which the

three chapters have joined in one agreement. Did

the three chapters participate jointly in the nego-

tiation of this agreement? A. Yes.

Q. And this agreement that is now in evidence

is presently in effect"? [19] A. Yes.

Q. Your chapter is presently a party to it?

A. Yes. [20]
•» -X- * * *
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(Testimony of Colton Harper.)

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Does this agreement con-

tinue to be given effect by your membership ?

A. That is a rather difficult thing to say. We
continually have disputes over the agreements.

Some of our members misinterpret the agreement

or do not enforce it or do not work under the

agreement as it was intended in the l^eginning.

Q. These disputes with respect to which you

refer are disx:)utes that come to your attention as

the association manager?

A. Approximately 50 per cent of them do.

Q. How frequently do they come to your atten-

tion, Mr. Harper?

A. Oh, several times a week.

Q. There is a provision within the agreement

that provides for these disputes ? A. Yes.

Q. Being taken up between a representative of

the Washington District Council and the represen-

tative of the chapter, isn't that correct?

A. That is correct. [23]
* * -X- •J^ *

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Is it not true, Mr. Harper,

that it is pursuant to the provisions of subsection

(a) of Paragraph 34 that you regularly engage in

the matter of seeking to adjust the disputes that

arise between the union, on the one side, and the

employer members on the other?

A. Yes. [24]

Q. Reference is made in paragraph 28 of the

agreement to—that is a permissive provision—read-
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ing, "The working rules of local unions which may
be accepted as a part of this agreement shall be rec-

ognized^' and so forth. May I ask, does Local 242

supply you with its local working rules?

A. No.

Q. Do you know whether they have a separate

body of local working rules?

A, I have seen them. They do have a separate

body.

Q. Is that the printed fomi you are refer-

ring to? Ao Yes.

Q. That is, the form of the working rules that

are prescribed in the decision that is published with

the constitution of the International?

A. Yes.

Q. So in so far as they have working rules your

knowledge of them is limited to those printed

rules?

A. My actual knowledge of their working rules

is limited to those in this agreement [25]
*****

Cross Examination * * * ^«- *

Q. (By Mr. Iverson) : What, if anything,

have you advised your members with respect to

whether or not under this contract thev can dis-

criminate with respect to employment as to whether

a man is a member or non-member of a imion, par-

ticularly if it relates to employment in commerce?
A. We have from time to time advised our

members that union membership is not a condition

of employment under the law and we have pub-
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lished a bulletin within the last year that I think

shows that.

Q. Have you at any time advised your members

that under this contract it would be necessary for

them to secure emx)loyees in commerce only from

union sources? A. Xo, I have not. [35]
•5f * -5^ -K- 4f

Q. Does it pay any people imder this contract?

A. Xo.

Q. AVhat is the form of the A.G.C. Seattle Chap-

ter in so far as its organization is concerned, coi^po-

ration, or partnership, or what ?

A. Corporation.

Q. Does the A.G-.C. Chapter itself take on any

construction contracts? A. Xo.

Q. Does the A.CC. Chapter itself do any work

in conunerce? A. Xo.

Q. Does the A.G-.C. Chapter itself purchase ma-

terials received in commerce? [36] A. Xo.

Q. Have you ever had occasion to undertake to

require or enforce as against—to require any mem-

ber or enforce against any member any requirement

that they recruit their employees solely through the

imion? A. Xo. [37]
* * * * *

Cross Examination

Q. (By Mr. Carney) : Mr. Harper, is there any

relationship between your chapter, the Seattle

Chapter and the ^Mountain Pacific Chapter of the

A.G.C., by contract or any other instrument ?

A. Xo, there is none.
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Q. And you act independently of each other?

A. Yes. [39]
* * * * -St

Redirect Examination *****
Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : As a matter of fact, you

know that your membership in regular day-to-day

practice follows the provisions of Section 6 in requi-

sitioning employees through the union hiring hall,

do you not?

A. I can't speak for any members, not being in

their offices. All I could do would be to surmise.

Q. You have not heard any protest from the

union of your members departing from that prac-

tice, have you? A. Yes, I have.

Q. To what extent?

A. Just being told that the members have done

so and they would like to see them comply a little

bit, with no threat or anything else, but^

Q. (Interrupting) : Have you ever told the

union in response to that information that you

were not going to be bound by the [43] terms of

that section, Section 6 ? A. No.

Q. And you have continued to publish Section 6

as a section of the contract presently in effect?

A. That is correct. [44]
*****
Mr. Iverson: Of course I don't think, if the

Examiner please, that we are confined to written

advice. I think that it is perfectly proper to indi-

cate that we had advised these people of this and if

we can come up with a written bulletin of that kind
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we shall do it. But there is nothing in the rules any-

where that says that the advice must be written.

Xow, it is the Ijurden of the goveriiment to estab-

lish that we have given effect to and enforced this

agreement during this time, and it is certainly per-

tinent, and there is no gi^oimd to strike testimony

because it's indicated that the instructions were

given verbally.

Trial Examiner: It seems to me that Mr. Boyd's

motion can be divided into two parts. As far as the

question of oral advice to the membership is con-

cerned, I think his objection goes to the weight

rather than the materiality. [45]
*****

Recross Examination

Q. fBy Mr. Jackson) : Do you have any knowl-

edge, Mr. Harper, as to whether any of the employ-

ees* who m.ay have emx^loyed Mr. Lewis, who is the

charging witness in this case, were members of the

A.G.C.?
* [Xote: The word ''Employees'' apx^ears to

be in error and the correct word appears to be

'' Employers."]

A. When we were first notified of this case I

checked with our members and was unable to find

any one of our members who had ever employed

Mr. Lewis or refused to emxjloy him. [48]

Mr. Jackson: That is all, * ^ ^ * ^

Trial Examiner: Thank you.

One more question. With respect to this advice

about discrimination to which vou referred before,
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this oral advice, if I remember correctly, you testi-

fied you couldn't remember the names of any mem-
bers to whom you gave that advice. Was this advice

that you volunteered or was it advice that was

requested ?

The Witness: Grenerally requested.

Trial Examiner: By whom was this requested?

The Witness: That is rather difficult to say, but

since we receive many queries during the day on

numerous subjects it would be awfully hard for me
to even estimate how many people [52] in the six

years I have been with the organization have asked

me that question.

Trial Examiner: If I understand you correctly

at this point, you have no recollection of any mem-

]>er to whom you gave such advice?

The Witness: I can't think of any because I

haven't been asked the question recently.

Trial Examiner : When was the last time ?

The Witness: Again I wouldn't know, but I

would say perhaps in the last six to eight months

period I have been asked that question.

Trial Examiner: Greneral Counsel's Exhibit No.

4 was entered into on the 30th day of Decem1>er

1955 and became effective on the 1st day of 1956.

Have you any recollection of any individual who

has ever requested such advice, or firm or corpora-

tion, any member, and to whom you gave such

advice since this agreement became effective ?

The Witness: No, I can't remember any indi-
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^^dual or who it may have been, or Avho lias asked

me the question, I can't remember.

Trial Examiner: Do you, in fact, remember giv-

ing any meml)er such information since January 1,

1956?

The Witness : Xot in specific cases, but I am cer-

tain I have.

Trial Examiner : Have you any recollection when

the last [53] time was that you did that?

The Witness: Sometime in the last six to eight

months.

Trial Examiner: Sometime ^vithin the last six to

eight months?

The Witness: Xo; what I mean is between six

and eight months

Trial Examiner: Ago?

The Witness: Yes. I don't think I have been

asked the question within the last six months.

Trial Examiner: That takes us back approxi-

mately to April or March or February?

The Witness: Yes.

Trial Examiner: And can you tell rne how many
asked you within that time, that is, up to six or

eight months ago ?

The Witness: Xo. The only reason I have a rec-

ollection of it at all is that this party who called

me had some fellow student who was on a spring

vacation whom he wished to employ and he asked

me if the fellow had to have union clearance, and

I infonned him that under the law the man did

not. [54]
* * ^ ^ *
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Redirect Examination

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Was this with respect to

common labor employment or what type of employ-

ment? A. Yes, common labor employment.

Q. It involved a student situation?

A. Yes.
* -S?- 4f * •}«•

Q. What did you say?

A. What I said was that he called me and asked

me if he could employ a student as a common

laborer on his job for a period of two weeks during

spring vacation.

Q. You told him he could?

A. Yes, I told him he could.

Q. That was the extent of the advice that you

gave ?

A. No. He asked me if he could do it without

clearing the man through the union. I said, ^^Under

the law you can do it without clearing the man
through the union." [55]
* * * * -jf

ROBERT P. SHAPLEY
a witness called by and on behalf of General Coun-

sel, being first duly sworn, was examined and testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Your name and position is

what?

A. Robert P. Shapley, and I am the manager of

the Tacoma Chapter of the Associated General Con-

tractors. [56]
* * -jf * *
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Q. Have von notified the local in your area or

the Western Washington District Conncil that vou

were no longer giving effect to j>aragrajjh 6 of the

agi-eement ?

A. I notified them through their building trades

representative.

Q. What was it you notified them of ?

A. I notified them that we had issued a memo-

randum or bulletin to our membership stating

tha" [w']

Cross Examination

Q- (By Mr. Iverson) : Do all of your members

obtain all of their laborers in aiecordance with Sec-

tion 6 of this agreement by getting their, by recruit-

ing their, people through the union ?

Trial Examiner: The -witness may answer if he

knows. [63]

A. No.

Q. TBy Mr. Iverson) : To what extent do they

not? [64]
* * * *

A- Since my shon time in Tacoma I beiieve ixiat

there was only once that some union representative

objected about a pai'ticular eontra.ctor because he

was hiring men off the street That is the term that

is used. And that is the only particular case that I

recall.

*****
Q. Did you undertake to enforce or advise—did
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you undertake to advise your members that they

must comply?

Mr. Boyd: I object.

A. No, I didn't.

Trial Examiner: Comply with what?

Mr. Iverson: With Section 6, in hiring em-

I)loyees.

Mr. Boyd: I objected to this but the witness has

answered, so I will withdraw the objection.

Trial Examiner: All right.

Q. (By Mr. Iverson) : Mr. Boyd brought out

the fact that you \QQ'] had issued some kind of a

bulletin. What kind of a bulletin did you issue?

A. It was a regular news bulletin to the General

Contractor members of the organization. [67]
* * * -X- -x-

Q. (By Mr. Iverson) : Did you ever advise your

members as to any change in their attitude or their

procedures or anything like that as a result of the

Jussel case, and, if so, what did you advise them?

A. I advised them
K- * * * *

Q. (By Mr. Iverson) : What did you advise

them ?

A. I advised them to, in their hiring of their

employees, to comply with the Taft-Hartley Law,
* * -se- * *

Trial Examiner: Well, the bulletin has to be

identified. If you are going to lay a foundation for

it, you would have to identify it.

Gentlemen, I am going to strike this witness'
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testimony [69] as to the contents of the bulletin.

As far as I am concerned, the bulletin will have to

be identified. If you can agree among yourselves as

to a waiver of foundation, that will be perfectly

agreeable to me. [70]
* * * -jf *

Q. (By Mr. Iverson) : At any time subsequent

to the negotiation of this present contract has the

Tacoma Chapter taken any action to require its

members to obtain all of their labor employees

through the union? A. ISTo.

Q. Will you furnish to me by tomorrow the bul-

letin that you have referred to? A. Yes.

Q. With respect to that bulletin, what distribu-

tion did it have?

A. It was sent to our entire GTeneral Contractor

membership.

Q. Does it bear the date that it was sent out or

can you tell us when it was sent out ?

A. Yes, it does. It bears the date. I don't re-

call it.

Q. Was it sent out on the date that it bears?

A. Yes.

Q. Does your chapter employ any persons under

the terms of this agreement itself?

* * * -x- *

The Witness : No. [72]

Q. (By Mr. Iverson) : Does your chapter as-

sume any responsibility for paying any of the peo-

ple who are employed under this agreement?

A. No.
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Q. Does your chapter do any construction work ?

A. No.

Q. Does your chapter purchase supplies or mate-

rials in excess of a hundred thousand dollars in any

year that might cross state lines'? A. No.

Q. Is your chapter a corporation or a partner-

ship? A. A corporation.

Q. Have any of the members of your chapter^ to

your knowledge, ever em^Dloyed Mr. Lewis ?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. Do you know whether or not any of your

members have refused employment to Mr. Lewis?

A. I haven't heard about it.

Q. Have you any knowledge of any discrimina-

tion practiced by the union in the referral of em-

ployees to your members with respect to whether

they were mem1>ers or non-members of the union?
*****
A. ¥0. [74]

*****
Cross Examination -^ * * * *

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : And does your chapter

or do the members of your chapter work in the

Seattle area as well as the Tacoma area?

A. Occasionally. [75]
*****

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Showing you what has

been marked General Counsel's 4, would you state

what that is?

A. This agreement, I am quite sure, without

looking at it, going into it, covers not only the
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Seattle area but, in addition to that, the Tacoma

area. [76]
* -K- * -Jfr -x-

Q. Do you have any dealings at all yourself

with Local 242 here in Seattle, here in the Seattle

area ? A. I haven't had.

Mr. Jackson : That is all.

Redirect Examination

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : You did say, thougii, there

are times when some of your Tacoma Chapter mem-
bers will engage in construction work in the Seattle

area? A. Yes, I did say that.

Q. At that time is the laborer work force requi-

sitioned through the Tacoma local or the Seattle

local? A. Both and partly.

Q. I beg your pardon?

A. Both and partly.

Q, Would you explain that answ^er? That was

just ambiguous enough that it mil require some

explanation.

A. If the contractor has obtained his men from

the union and had worked in the Tacoma area and

had certain of his employees working for him there

and obtained a job in the Seattle area, he may bring

part of those men that he had obtained in Tacoma

with him, and also in addition to that he would

obtain additional men in the Seattle area. [77]

Q. Tell me this, you are speaking now of where

he has a constant labor force, and he may bring a

part of them with him?
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A. That is true ; that is what I mean.

Q. As the core of his working crew, is that

right? A. Yes.

Q. In practice are those people directed to clear

through the Local 242 in Seattle? A. No.

Q. Those people are cleared by virtue of their

membership in the Tacoma local, is that it?

A. The question has never come to my— I am
not aware of any type of clearance either way when

they come over here.

Q. But as to additional hires that are required

beyond his own force, work force, that he: brings

with him, those he would hire by requisitioning

through the Seattle local?

A. He may, yes. [78]
* -jf * * *

Trial Examiner: Yes. I was referring to a sub-

ject that was opened up by Mr. Iverson before,

namely, some conversation with a representative of

440. [85]
•X- ^{- <« * *

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : This man with whom you

talked, his name was what?

A. I do not recall.

Q. But you know him, then, as a representative

of Local 440? A. Yes.

Q. And he was objecting to your mem]>ership

not complying with this agreement?

A. He was pointing out that they had not.
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Q. He was insisting that the contract be com-

plied with, wasn't he'?

A. I don't recall that he insisted that it be com-

plied with, but he did object to the manner in which

this had taken place.

Q. Was this a discussion

Trial Examiner: Excuse me just a moment.

Tell us what w^as said instead of using words like

*4nsisf and ^'requested" and so forth; tell us what

was said and when it was said and by whom. You
can wind it all up in one package.

The Witness : Are you asking me to do that ?

Trial Examiner: Yes.

The Witness: That is actually a pretty big

order. These people call— I mean we have these

phone calls and it's very difficult to remember the

exact time and place and so forth, [86] but I be-

lieve that it was approximately tv^o months ago on

some road job—I don't remember, recall, the job

—

whereby

Trial Examiner: A Seattle or Tacoma job?

The Witness: I believe it would have been in

—

well, it would have been in the Seattle jurisdiction,

within the jurisdiction of the Seattle union.

Trial Examiner : All right, go ahead, sir.

The Witness: And that some objection was made

to the manner in which two or three men were

hired, something like that, I don't remember defi-

nitely, but some men were hired that the union ob-

jected to for some reason or other. I have even for-
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gotten what the reason was. They made known those

objections to me.
* ^ * * *

Trial Examiner: Do you recollect whether the

conversation had anything to do with any individ-

uals being hired [87] directly by your members?

The Witness: To be truthful, I don't know

whether it was that or whether it was which union

the men belonged to, whether they were in a differ-

ent union than this union or whether it was thought

they should be in their union or a different local,

something of that type. I actually don't recall ex-

actly what it was.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : It may have been, then, an

issue as to whether Locals 440 or 242 or your local

down there had the right to do a certain type of

work, is that it?

A. Something on that order, I imagine. It's

mainly the issue was I don't believe the men be-

longed to 440, and that was the issue. [88]
* * * * *

Trial Examiner: Is the Labor Committee com-

posed of members of your organization?

The Witness: Yes.

Trial Examiner: Can you tell me what the basis

is for their purported power to negotiate these

agreements ?

The Witness: I believe it's specified in the by-

laws that a negotiating committee [89]
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a witness called by and on behalf of General Coun-

sel, being first duly sworn, was examined and testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination *****
Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : And your employment?

A. Manager of the Mountain Pacific Chapter of

the Associated General Contractors.

Q. Your organization has membership that oper-

ates in what area?

A. In the fifteen counties of western Washing-

ton principally, but they operate also outside of

that area.

Q. Is there a particular distinction between the

membership of your organization and the member-

ship of either the Seattle Chapter or the Tacoma

Chapter?

A. Yes, there is. Our organization members are

engaged principally in highway and heavy construc-

tion as opposed to building construction.

Q. Do you have meml>ers who are engaged in

building construction work?

A. We have members who may do building

work, but our members are principally engaged in

heavy and highv^ay construction. They may do all

kinds of work.

Trial Examiner: They are general contractors?

The Witness: They are general contractors.

Trial Examiner: As far as you know, or do you

know, whether that is true of the other two chapters

involved in this proceeding?
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The Witness: There are some members of the

other two chapters who likewise are engaged in all

phases of construction work. But the Seattle Chap-

ter's members are principally [92] engaged in build-

ing construction.

Trial Examiner: As general contractors'?

The Witness: As general contractors. And the

Tacoma Chapter has members who do both building

and heavy and highway work. [93]

* 4f -X- -K- *

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : In order not to burden the

record with additional exhibits, does not your by-

laws provide, and I quote from Article I, subpara-

graph (c) :

^'To secure Tmiformity of action among the mem-
bers forming the chapter, upon the general princi-

ples set forth in the constitution and by-laws of this

chapter, and upon such other special lines of action

as may be decided upon from time to time as being

best for the interest of the chapter and for the good

of the industry as a whole.''

Have I quoted correctly from one of the aims of

your organization? A. Right.

Q. Does not your rules of procedure under Arti-

cle I, subparagraph (k), provide:

^^All labor negotiations shall be handled through

the Mountain Pacific Chapter office and under the

jurisdiction of its duly elected labor committee.

Individual members shall not, under any circum-

stances, sign agreements with any Labor Collective
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Bargaining Agency without first obtaining specific

approval from the Mountain Pacific Chapter''?

That is a provision within your rules of proce-

dure? A. Right. [97]
* * * 4f *

Trial Examiner: Were those rules in effect at

the time the contract, General Counsel's Exhibit No.

4, was negotiated?

The Witness: Correct.

Trial Examiner: Was there a labor committee in

existence at that time ?

The Witness: Yes.

Trial Examiner: Did the Labor Committee par-

ticipate in those negotiations?

The Witness: Yes. [98]
* * -x- * *

Cross Examination

Q. (By Mr. Carney) : What is the nature of

your association as to whether it's a corporation,

partnership, or otherwise?

A. It's a corporation.

Q. Does it have any contractual agreement or

arrangements with the other three chapters, namely,

Seattle and Tacoma? A. No.

Q. It's completely autonomous in its own field?

A. Yes.
3f * * * *

Q. Does the Mountain Pacific Chapter, as such,

buy or sell goods in interstate commerce in excess

of a hundred thousand dollars? A. No.

Q. Does the Mountain Pacific Chapter, of itself,
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enter into contracts to build buildings, highways,

and other structures for others?

A. No, sir. [99]

Q. Do you have any contract, other than Gen-

eral Counsel's Exhibit 4, with Local No. 242 of the

International Hodcarriers? A. No.
* 4f * -x- *

Q. (By Mr. Carney) : Do you as a chapter have

any negotiations with Local Union No. 242 ?

A. No negotiations and no contract.

Q. Why is that?

A. Local 242 is principally a union that supplies

workmen on l>uildings, and to the best of my knowl-

edge, in the nine years I have been with the associa-

tion I have not had any occasion to have any con-

versation other than* in negotiations or in labor dis-

putes between our members with Local 242.

* [Words "other than" appear to be sur-

plusage.]

Q. So you have no contact with them as such as

a labor organization?

A. Not in so far as labor relations are con-

cerned.

Q. Do you know whether any of your members

have any transactions with Local 242?

A. They might. I am not aware of it. It could

l>e, but I am not aware that they have had transac-

tions with Local 242.

Trial Examiner: Do you know whether they get

any [100] laborers from that local?

The Witness: The District Council of Laborers,
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the composition of it^ is that, generally speaking,

they are both combined building and heavy and

highway local unions, but in Seattle they have two

separate local unions : one is building, supplies men
to building construction ; and the other supplies men
to heavy highway, sewer disposal and that type, as

compared with building. And most of our members

deal almost exclusively with Local 440 in this area.

Q. (By Mr. Carney) : Has Cyrus ever applied

to your association for employment? A, No.

Q. Has he ever been employed by your associa-

tion % A. No.

Q. To your knowledge, have any of the members

of your association employed him?

A. Not to my knowledge, no.

Q. To your knowledge, have any of them re-

fused to employ him? A. No.

Q. Do you as an association participate with

your members in securing labor forces for your

members, in hiring employees?

A. No, absolutely not.

Q. Do you have anything to say to your mem-
bers about the discharge of employees? [101]

A, No.

Q. Is there any necessity in your industry for a

hiring hall of some kind ?

A. Oh, absolutely. Whether we have unions or

not we would still be required to have a pool of

men^ of qualified men, to man these jobs. Construc-

tion is not only a matter of obtaining men, it's a
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matter of obtaining skilled men, for safety pur-

poses. One man can cause a falling of a structure

that can damage property and kill workmen. Fur-

theiinore, the construction industry pays some fifty

per cent more for its workmen than other organ-

izations or other activities, due to the fact that we

demand highly skilled men. Our labor agreements^

—

I am saying this very, very frankly—are negoti-

ated to obtain for our members skilled men. If the

union doesn't have skilled men, our people can get

men wherever they want, but we need skilled men.

We have to have some source for obtaining those

people. We can't go to anyone because we have a

jargon of the trade that is necessary, just as much

as skill. We have a very specific problem. We per-

form work for governmental agencies and our work

is of a very dangerous nature, and it's tremendously

important that we have available people w^ho can

make use of this highly technical equipment that

we operate.

Trial Examiner: Tell me this, please, while we
are on the subject: how many of your members, if

you know, employ [102] laborers who perform the

work coming within the jurisdiction of Local 440',

let us say, how many of your members emi^loy

laborers all year-round, that is, the same laborers?

The Witness: They may have some all year-

round, but it would be a very small number. There

may be some that are kept on the payroll the year-

roimd, but the great bulk of the workmen that are

required are required during the working season,
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which is from five to maybe a maximmn of nine

months.

Trial Examiner: Well, typically, what happens

to a laborer who is on a job for, let us say, thirty

days, which is the duration of the job, typically

does he remain on the payroll after the expiration

of the employment on that particular job or does

he go off the payroll?

The Witness: Remember, construction is a very

fluid operation.

Trial Examiner: I remember, but I want to

know it for this record.

The Witness: One contractor may have five jobs

going, he may have three jobs going, he will trans-

fer the bulk of workmen maybe this week from one

operation to another operation on another job; it

may even be out of the territory. When the opera-

tion is completed he will terminate the services of

those workmen. He will maintain a very small num-

ber of men to maybe clean up his equipment or tools

and to put his job in ship-shape prior to turning it

over to the awarding agency. [103]

Trial Examiner: Is there any reason why he

cannot conveniently hire those workmen whom he

has terminated for his next job himself? Is there

any reason for that?

The Witness: Why he can't?

Trial Examiner: Why he can't, any reason of

convenience, yes, directly.

The Witness: He may, any one contractor, and

most of them follov/ this practice, are bidding in the
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common working area of this northwest. Now, we
have jurisdiction over Western Washington, but

our members are figuring just as much work in

eastern Washington or maybe northern Idaho or

Montana or Oregon, wherever there is work they

figure on, they figure on a job. Even within the

given area of Seattle he wouldn't necessarily know

what men can perform a particular operation. He is

dependent upon a source of manpower dispersal to

get the kind of people that he needs. Now, we have

a show-up clause—this is maybe not x)ertinent, but

it's terribly important to the problem that our mem-
bers are faced with

Trial Examiner: It may be quite pertinent. Go
ahead, sir.

The Witness: They are required to pay four

hours whether the man works or whether he doesn't

work. The reason for that is good. It prevents a

contractor who is not a human person from just

willy-nilly calling, having, men report to work

whether he wants them to work or not. So rather

than [104] deprive those men of a chance to work
somewhere else, he is required, if he calls them to

work, to put them to work, so, therefore, he is out

of pocket $10 when he calls one man to report for

work. Now, he can't maintain a processing facility

to determine whether these men whom he needs are

qualified to man all this very technical and very

expensive equipment, so he must count, he is com-

pletely dependent, on a source of information to

supply him with good qualified men. Our agreement
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only calls for qualified men. If the men are not

qualified, then they can get, they are free to go and

get, men wherever they wish.

Trial Examiner: How long has this hiring hall

procedure, to your knowledge, been in effect '?

The Witness: It's been in effect that ten years

that I have been connected with the association, and

I have

Trial Examiner: That is all you are in a posi-

tion to testify to, is that not so?

The Witness : I am aware that it was there much

longer than that. [105]
* 4f 4t * 4t

Trial Examiner: Have you members who go to,

say, Idaho from the Seattle-Tacoma region per-

forming contracts ^

The Witness : Yes, sir.

Trial Examiner: Have you any members in

Idaho?

The Witness: We have members who perform

work in Idaho, but not members, Idaho members,

who just join our chapter, no.

Trial Examiner: Well, what would a member
who performs work in Idaho but has his headquar-

ters in the Seattle-Tacoma area do to get laborers

in Idaho?

The Witness: That is a very good point. Even

though the wage rate in Idaho may be very much
less, even though they may have no hiring provi-

sions whatsoever, we would still take, our members

would take, their men from Seattle to Idaho to per-
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fomi work. The skill of the workmen is so essential

to the [106] operation of construction work that

they take their men that they know and can

count on.

Trial Examiner: Where would they get the men?

The Witness : They would take them right from

whatever area they were operating in. If they were

operating out of Yakima, they would take them

from Yakima; if they were operating out of Seat-

tle, they would take them from Seattle.

Trial Examiner: But where would they recruit

them'F Plow would they recruit them?

The Witness : The men they would take would be

those on their payroll at the time.

Trial Examiner: How would they recruit men
who are not on their payroll? That is what I am
trying to find out.

The Witness: They would recruit men that they

need from the source of information, the only

source of men that is available; the qualified men
are at the union hall.

Trial Examiner: All right.

Q. (By Mr. Carney) : What he is trying to get,

Mr. Landaas, was, in Idaho, if the man went there

without a crew, where would he get his Idaho crew?

A. He would have to go to a labor organization.

Q. In Idaho?

A. To find qualified men.

Trial Examiner: I am not trying to find out

from you where he would have to go. What I am
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trying to find out from [107] you is if you know
what he does do. What is the practice ?

The Witness: That is it. They would go to the

union to obtain the men that they need to man the

equipment that they have to man.

Trial Examiner: From your knowledge of the

industry can you tell me why that is so?

The Witness: It's necessarily so. A shovel run-

ner, a powder man, is a man that can do, that can

perform, considerably more work than someone who
isn't experienced with it. He is also a safer man
and he can perform the work in accordance with the

specifications that we have to operate under.

Trial Examiner: What is a powder man?
The Witness: A man that shoots dynamite. [108]

* * * -Sf -x-

Redirect Examination

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : What you have described

in response to the Trial Examiner is the practice of

your association members, that they follow. When
they need men who are not already in their employ,

it is their practice to call the hiring hall of the

union that is local to that community in which they

are working and recruit their force from that

union ?

A. With this one difference in what you say.

There is a very definite distinction. If the men are

not skilled, if there is an unskilled—^we are not obli-

gated to go to the imion for someone who is not

qualified, not a skilled man, we are not obligated to

go anywhere. The union doesn't even expect us to
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call upon them. But when it comes to men to man
the classifications that we have in the agreement,

which are skilled classifications, then we call on

them because they have the men, not l>ecause we

have to go to them hwi l)ecause they are the only

source of information that we have available.

Q. But as a matter of fact, you agree in the

agreement, do you not, to secure these men from

the union? A. Only qualified men. [109]

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : As a matter of fact, do not

your employer members seek to get whatever work

force they need through the hiring hall? They don't

hire off the banks in practice, do they?

A. I will bet our members have hired two hun-

dred people this summer. I know of fifty students

that were hired directly from the University, but

for unskilled work.

Q. Was this the subject matter of complaints

that the imion made to you? [110]

A. No, not at all.

Q. How did this come to your attention?

A. Because we made arrangem.ents with the uni-

versity and we discussed it with the union, to place

some of these engineering students and acquaint

them with construction, that we felt would be a

good thing for the industry, to develop engineers

that would, instead of going into other fields of

work, that would go into construction operations.

Q. This group of people you speak about, did
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the union, with respect to that group of people,

agree that they might be hired?

A. It was just a courtesy to let them know what

we were doing.

Q. Did you not get an agreement from them

with respect to requiring a referral from the union ?

A. No.

Q. Was there not an understanding reached be-

tween you and the union that no refeiTal would be

required with respect to these university students?

A. Not mth us there wasn't. [Ill]
* * -jf * *

Trial Examiner: I assume the General Counsel

is aware of the extensive prevalence of these non-

discriminatory hiring halls and their extensive his-

tory in many industries of the country, including

the shipping industry, the longshore industry, and

so on? I assume that the General Counsel is aware

of that.

Mr. Boyd : I am aware of it.

Trial Examiner: I am referring to the General

Counsel, not to his representative.

Mr. Boyd: You are referring to the capital C
General Counsel, not the little one dovv^n here at this

level ?

Trial Examiner: Yes.

Mr. Boyd: I think he is, ])ut specifically in this

proceeding we are interested in having the Board

understand the theory of our litigation here; we

are having the Board examine in this context what

we believe it has said in another context.
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Trial Examiner: To make myself clear, I am not

suggesting that there is anything wrong in re-

examining these positions. I simply wanted to make

sure that I am absolutely certain of your position,,

that you contend that this contractual [113] lan-

guage standing alone is unlawful.

Mr. Boyd: That is right. [114]
*****

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Apart from these who had

student standing, with respect to persons employed

to do common labor, have not your membership

been required by the agreement to secure them, to

recruit them, by calling the imion to have such men
dispatched? [115]
*****

A. That is a difficult question to answer. I would

have to answer it in my own way.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Give whatever answer will

fully explain your position.

A. And it's a repetition of what I said before,

that our people are required by circumstance to

obtain qualified men from a source where those

qualified men are available, whether we had unions

or not, we would still have to have that type of pool,

of facility available. By necessity of their job they

are required to get skilled men from that source,

and that source is the union. Unskilled men, they

are not required, and they can get men wherever

they want; there is no discrimination anywhere for

unskilled men.

Q. My question of you was with respect to men
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who are doing common labor. You cliaracterized

those as skilled or unskilled ; I am not sure of what

your classification may be. But men who are em-

ployed to do common labor, are they, as you know
of the practice, secured by your employer members

under the provisions of Section 6 of the contract

through the Common Laborers' hall?

A. Necessarily so. And in order to obtain the

type of [116] people that they require for their

jobs, they have that one source available to them.

Q. Very well. I am content with your answer,

but in order to make it abundantly clear, you are

saying that only university students are the ones

who are not qualified, is that it ?

A. No. I just gave that as an example. There

were many more than that who were employed this

summer.

Q. For what type of work and where?

A. Well, that is quite a problem. We are build-

ing up a much greater volume of construction work

in the area, the road program is expanding; the

tremendous natural gas development caught us with

a tremendous shortage of all classifications of men.

It's necessary to train men. This year we had to

take people and train them. Large numbers of peo-

ple were lirought into the game and trained by con-

tractors this summer, even on shovels and bull-

dozers and

Q. Weren't those people whom you secured to

do any work that required no skill at all directed to
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go down and clear through the union hall? Wasn't

that a point of controversy?

A. I don't believe so, but I can't answer you

directly. I don't know, unless

Trial Examiner: Have you any personal knowl-

edge of this?

The Witness: Yes, I know that many of them

were not cleared through a union, but I can't an-

swer his question [117] specifically.

Trial Examiner: Do I understand you cannot

answer because you do not know? Is that the point?

The Witness: I can't break it down, but I do

know, based upon the information that comes to me
from my members, that many men were trained and

they were taken from where they could get them.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Trained to do conmion

lal>or that was not sent out through the union hall?

A. No ; that was to—well, some of them, yes.

* * * *

Trial Examiner: Doesn't your case shake down

to this, Mr. Boyd, in a nutshell—I am still trying to

find out^—if you establish that either one or both of

the labor organizations involved here discriminated

in the dispatch of the charging party or others, it

was the associations who created the conditions for

that discrimination through the provisions [118]

of the contract, and therefore they have violated the

law? Isn't that your position?

Mr. Boyd : That is correct.

* * * *

Trial Examiner: Look, I don't want to speculate
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about what may come out in the evidence later, but

I am meeting your comx)laint, and if I read your

complaint right, what you are alleging is that the

union discriminatorily refused to assign the charg-

ing party, Mr. Lewis'? Is that right?

Mr. Boyd : That is right.

Trial Examiner: That is what you come

down to ?

Mr. Boyd : That is right.

Trial Examiner: And you say that the associa-

tions have joint responsibility because, by reason of

their agreement to the Section 6 of G. C. 4, they

make this alleged discrimination possible. Is that

correct? [119]

Mr. Boyd: That is right.

Trial Examiner: If your thesis is correct, if it

is correct, what difference would it make if there

had been some exceptions, et cetera, et cetera?

Mr. Boyd: I would think it would make no dif-

ference if those exceptions were insubstantial.

Trial Examiner : But the law reaches discrimina-

tion wherever it exists, if it's unlawful

Mr. Boyd: That is right, but I was endeavor-

ing in this case, Mr. Examiner, to prove that the

system operated as against a class of people and

not simply Lewis.

Trial Examiner: All right, let's pursue the sys-

tem in ten minutes. It's long past our time for

a recess. Let's take a break for ten minutes now.

(Short recess.)

Trial Examiner: The hearing will be in order.
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Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : One other question I

would direct to you^ Mr. Landaas, is this: you say

that in calling for men at the union hall you ex-

pect to get qualified workmen? A. Yes.

Q'. Has your organization or any of the A.G.C.

chapters, so far as you know, established any stand-

ards or description of job content which is to con-

trol the local union in determining the qualifica-

tions of people who are to be dispatched?

A. Every employer that needs a man vnll de-

scribe what he [120] needs in great detail, as to

type of man he needs, when he is in need of a man.

Q. What you are saying is that reliance is then

placed upon the union dispatcher to determine

that the man whom he dispatches has whateyer

qualifications that he understands the employer

wants ?

A. I think you have to be quite familiar mth
construction to know what our problem is. We are

constantly getting new and ])etter and more com-

plicated pieces of equipment. Construction is not

done by a shovel, the common, ordinary number

two hand sliovel, any more; it's done with machin-

ery: and the classifications that are spelled out in

the agreement are pretty well known. We not

only sit down in negotiations, we also meet with

these people throughout the year. We work to-

gether principally because we have a tremendously

important job to perform. They have a responsi-

bility with us to obtain the type of men that our

people need to man a job properly. I don't think
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there is any question in anyone's mind in the busi-

ness that when a man has called for a wagon drill

operator or for any of these classifications but what

it's imderstood that

Q. (Interrupting) Now, even though you do,

your employer member may specify what a wagon

drill operator or a mixer or a power operator,

whatever it may be, the matter of selecting which

man shall be dispatched, however, is reposed in

the [121] union dispatcher, is it not?

A. Oh, I don't believe that is true. I think

they pick, they may name, someone who has been

Avorking with them before, for example, and ask

them if they are available.

Q. All right. Except for the situation where

they name a man by name, then the qualifying

factor is, is this the person who has that name, but

except for that do they not entrust the matter of

selection entirely to the union dispatcher?

A. Not entirely, but to a great deal, yes, sir,

that is true.

*****
Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Do you recall the incident

you were searching for in your mind awhile ago?

A. I do know a great number of men were em-

ployed this summer by our members outside of the

union hall facilities. I can't name any company,

any man. It has been reported to me
Trial Examiner: That is just the problem mth

this whole line of interrogation and testimony; a

great deal of it. Here is a gentleman who per-
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forms while collar duties in some of&ce; obviously

what takes place at the union hall is not x^erformed

in the office, and obviously what takes place at

[122] some distance from his office by people in

the field working on construction jobs is not con-

ducted in his office. What he Iiears from various

peoi^le is ob\dously not probative. There has been

the imderlying reservation in my mind throughout

a great deal of this line of interrogation that it

is pure hearsay. If you have any probative evi-

dence as to what the practice actually was, that

is another story. But I am wondering how one

can do anything but base speculative findings as to

what actually happened in relation to the hiring

of men if he himself did not have anything to do

with it.

Mr. Boyd: I do not differ with the observation

of the Trial Examiner. In view of the witness'

disclosure that he is only able to identify the name

of someone who made a report to him without

l^eing able to specify the detail of what he is allud-

ing to, I believe that his testimony would have

no value, and while I can't ask that it be stricken,

because I invited it, I would have to in passing

say it proves nothing.

Trial Examiner: All that I get back to is the

very basic question in this case. There is an

agreement which, as I understand the testimony,

carries out a practice of many years standing. I

assume from the allegations of your complaint that

your position will be that the union has discrimina-

torily dispatched Mr. Lewis or failed to dispatch
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him, as the case may be, and that you are alleging

that the three chapters, because they agreed to

Section 6 of the contract, have joint responsibility

for such discrimination. [123]

Mr. Boyd: That is right.

Trial Examiner: Outside of that, I think we

get bogged down into a whole lot of hearsay as

far as these witnesses are concerned, because all

they appear to do is get scatterings of informa-

tion over the telephone, second-hand at best. I

don't know that that is helpful to the basic ques-

tion we have to have determined.

Mr. Boyd: In view of the witness' last answer,

I have no further inquiry of him. [124]
•«• ^ * ^ -Sf

(The document heretofore marked General

Counsers Exhibit No. 5 for identification was

received in e^ddence.)

Trial Examiner: There is no testimony. By
the way, there is some vague reference to the dis-

tribution in Mr. Harper's testimony, but we don't

know specifically when it was distributed and to

whom, but we will leave that to your [126] dis-

cretion, and we will let it stand as it is.

Mr, Boyd : I would make the offer with the fur-

ther stiiiulation, that this was a bulletin issued on

or about the date of August 23, 1956, which was

sent to the membership of the Seattle Chapter of

A.G.C.

Mr. Tverson: I think that is correct; it went

to the general membership.
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Trial Examiner: Can you all agree to the fact,

gentlemen %

Mr. Jackson: Yes.

Mr. Ca^mey: Yes.

Trial Examiner: All rights it will be received.

Mr. Boyd: I will call Mr. Buchanan.

ROBERT BUCHANAN
a witness called by and on behalf of the General

Counsel, being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

Q. (By Mr. Boyd): Your name is what, sir'?

A. Robert Buchanan.

Q. For six months of this year what was your

employment?

A. I v/as secretary of the Building Laborers

Local 242, financial secretary. [128]
* * * -jf jt

Qo How long have you known Cyrus Lewis?

A. I wouldn't know. It was quite a few years

ago that I met him first. I wouldn't recall when

I met him first, but it's been quite sometime.

Q. Have you recently examined your own union

records to refresh your recollection as to when he

gained mem.bership in your organization?

A. Back in '43 or '44, back in the forties, in

the early forties, I think it was.
*****

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Did he at that time con-

tinue his membership?
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A. Oh, he continued it for sometime. I don't

know whether he transferred out, but he must have

continued it for a year or so anyway, or around

that. * ^ ^ * * [130]

Q. In the spring of this year, Mr, Buchanan,

was he then a member? A. ISTo, he was not.

'Q. So far as you have a recollection—did Lewis

in 1956, following the first of the year, seek work

through your hiring hall?

A. I believe he did. [131]
* % * -jj- *

Q. Bearing in mind that date, and by reference

to a calendar for the month of May of 1956, May
14 appearing to fall on Monday, I ask you this,

do you recall the discussion you had on that day

with Lewis about him having filed this charge?

A. I don't recall—do I recall a discussion with

Mr. Lewis on that charge? [132]
* * * -x- *

Q. Do you recall what Leo said to you when

Mr. Lewis came up that morning?

A. No, I don't recall what he said to me.

Q. All right, keeping in mind that this was at

the time that the copy of the charge was received,

which was on May 14, I will ask you if you recall

the circumstance that occurred on the preceding

Wednesday, May 9, where you saw Lewis on a job.

A. That was on the 9th? Well, yes. Now
we will piece this together. He was at that par-

ticular time, Mr. Lewis, I believe, was working on

a construction building on Denny Way, an addition
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to the Teamsters' Hall, I guess that is the day you

refer to.

* * -x- * *

Q. Had your imion dispatched him to that job?

A. No.

Q. What did you do when you foimd him work-

ing on that job?

A. I asked Mr. Lewis who he was working for.

Q. That is right. Did he point out to you the

man he was working for?

A. He pointed out the man he was working for.

Q. Then what did you do?

A. Well, the man who he was working for

wasn't the contractor, he was the house mover who

had

Q. He was the subcontractor?

A. He took a subcontract to raise* the building,

yes. [134]

[*Note: Transcript incorrectly spells the

word "raze'' as ^^ raise" on line 25.]
****»

Q. And there was a discussion as to whether or

not the union would send Lewis out on a job? Do
you remember this conversation?

A. No, I don't think it was a discussion as to

whether he would send him out, as to whether he*

would take Lewis into the organization.

*[Note: Transcript incorrectly spells word

"we" as "he" on line 13.]
* * -x- * *

Q. Do you not recall that there was some dis-
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cussion as to whether Lewis would have to choose

whether he wanted to go out as a common laborer

or as a hod carrier?

A. That is correct, yes, we have separate classi-

fications.

Q. Do you not recall that you told Dan Boyd

to send Lewis back down and have him tell you

whether he wanted to go out as a hod carrier or a

common laborer? A. That is correct, yes.

Q. Following that conversation you had with

Dan Boyd, whether you remember it to be on the

telephone or otherwise, [137] following that, didn't

Lewis come back down to the hall on the following

day, the 15th ? A. I believe he did.

Q. Did he on that occasion, to your recollection,

inform you or Leo in your presence that he wanted

to go out as a hod carrier?

A. Yes, that is correct.

Q. At this juncture, in order that the Trial

Examiner will understand it and that the record

here will show it, what was at that time your pro-

cedure that you followed in the hall with respect

to dispatching hod carriers as a grouj), in com-

parison to the construction laborers or common

laborers as a group? First, were they dispatched

at the same room? A. No.

Q. You had separate rooms for them?

A. No; separate windows. Separate windows.

Q. Separate windows. All right, who did the

dispatching of the hod carriers?
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A. Leo Allman did the dispatching of the hod

carriers.

Q. Who did the dispatching of the common

laborers'?

A. Leo also handled the both of them.

Q. He handled both mndows?
A. Both windows, yes.

Q. With regard to the common laborers, did you

have a [138] register there of any kind for them?

A. Yes.

Q. How many registers did you carry at your

window? How many registers did you have at

your window?

A. We just had the one book.

Q. What was your system at that time a])out

registering those who wanted work?

A. Well, they came and signed their name on

the book and then they tools: their turn, that is,

they, unless they were special provisions, that they

w^anted a buggy man or a jackhammer man or

something like that, the laborers put their name

on the book, all the laborers put their name on

the book.

Q. When they signed their name on the book

were they given a number? A. That is correct.

Q. They were given a number?

A. They were given a number.

Q. You are saying that they were sent out ac-

cording to their number unless they were asked for

by special name?

A. That is correct. Or else if, like transporta-
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tion or something like that, to go down and get

someone with transportation or

Q. Wliat about your non-members, what did

they sign?

A. They put their name in, we took their name

on the back of the regular dispatch book. [139]

Q. But normally in your dispatching of people

to the common laboring jobs, you would dispatch

by num]3er as long as there were people there

holding numbers? A. That is correct.

Q. Then, when you had exhausted those who

held numbers you would then dispatch those who
had no number, whose names were on the back of

the registration?

A. If they were present. We used the same

procedure, only in reverse, we dispatched the non-

members in rotation according to their number if

they were present.

Q. As to the hod carrier group. Bob, did you

have a registration book for them?

A. No, we didn't have a registration for them.

They are quite fewer, there are not too many of

them, and they are more regularly employed than

the laborers, ih^j work for the same contractors,

some of them work them for a year and two years,

we had no book for them, we just had to remember

who was there until a call came in.

Trial Examiner: Do you remember who was

idle?

The Witness: Just, just to remember who was

reporting; if someone called up and said, "I am



Mountain Pacific Chap, of A.G.C, et al, 123

(Testimony of Robert Buchanan.)

through, I will be down to the hall'', or something

like that.

Trial Examiner: Did you ever have a situation

where more than one man was idle?

The Witness: Oh, yes. [140]

Trial Examiner: How would you pick which

one to call?

The Witness: We would give the members their

choice to a certain extent. In the hodcarrying

business there are some hod carriers who won't

work for certain contractors, and others prefer to

work for that contractor, so we let the members

decide w^hich one to go to, if there were some more

men there, and also one or two calls.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : So that we may imder-

stand fully your answer, approximately what was

the number of hod carriers that had membership

in your organization? A. Altogether?

Q. Altogether. A. Around 70, I believe.

Q. Approximately what was the number of

those who fell in the class of common laborers or

construction workmen in your organization?

A. Aroimd 17, 18 hundred.

Q. Seventeen himdred?

A. Yes, around that figure, yes.

Q. Normally, in normal operations, about how
many hod carriers would show up on a morning,

in the course of a morning, for dispatch?

A. Oh, five, six and seven there at one particu-

lar time. During the time Mr. Lewis was there

there was no plastering going on, there were a
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group of plasterers and liod carriers [141] idle

for a matter of five or six weeks at that particular

time. All the work had been caught up and there

were probably six or seven there almost every day.
* 4f * * *

Q. Do I understand from your answer that,

with respect to the hod carriers, you would let the

members choose which contractor, whether to go

out with a particular contractor?

A. Yes, that is true. We allow the members

that preference, the hod carriers that preference.

In other words, say, Mr. Boyd called for a man,

he would say, '^You give that to someone else, I

don't want to work for him'', that was their privi-

lege to do so.

Q. But if this particular hod carrier had worked

for this man before, he had the privilege of claim-

ing that job, is that what you say?

A. If he wanted to go back there, yes, that is

correct, if he wanted to go back.

Q. Y^ou are saying this was the right that was

given to the members. Hovv^ w^as the determina-

tion as to non-members [142] made, in sending

them out on hod carrier work? Or did you send

non-members out on hod carrier work?

A, That is, vv^e have sent them out. Naturally

there would be times when the regular members

were not there.

Q, When the regular members were not there

and there was a job available, you would send the

non-member out, you would send out a non-mem-
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ber ? A. Yes.

Q. You have rather conscientiously observed

the obligation that is set out in your constitution

with respect to your giving preference to members

over non-members? A. Well

Q. I direct your attention

Trial Examiner: He said, ^^WelF'', and that is

all.

Mr. Boyd: I see.

Trial Examiner: The question, have you con-

scientiously adhered to the rules that have been

read to you by Mr. Boyd"?

The Witness : I try to follow the constitution as

nearly as possible, yes.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : You also have tried to fol-

low the obligation that you took as an official of

the union, too, have you not? A. Certainly.

Q. Included in that is the provision, I quote:

"And I further promise that I will do all in my
power to procure employment for such brothers

as may desire situations in preference to any and

all non-union men''. That has [143] been a x>art

of your obligations, hasn't it?

A. That has been a part of our obligation, yes,

sir.

Q. And you have lived up to that?

A. As near as possible.

Q. And is it not true, Bob, that officers, so far

as you have been able to observe, the officers of

your local union have continued to live up to this

particular part of their obligation?
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A. Now, I can't speak for them, but I suppose

that they lived up to the general provisions of it,

yes. [144]
* * * 4f *

Q. I direct your attention now to the date of

May 23rd and ask you if you recall him coming

back in off the Landrus jol) and you and Leo and

him talking at the dispatch window.

A. I believe, yes, I recall that, yes.

Q. What is your recollection of what took place

at that time?

A. I guess Mr. Lewis talked about coming back

into the organization, I believe that was part of

our conversation, about becoming a member again

of the organization.

Q. That he w^anted to become a member of the

organization ? [146]

A. Of the organization, yes.

Q. What was said to him?

A. I believe we told him if he would get out

and fill the l)ill and behave himself he could be-

come a member.

Q. Do you remember anything else that Avas

said to him?

A. Well, I don't recollect that anything much

else was said to him.

Q. Is it your recollection that you did the

talking to Cyrus or did Leo do the talking to Cy-

rus ?

A. Leo did the most of the talking. I didn't

do much talking the last month I was down there.
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I had just got over a bad heart attack and I didn't

get into a controversy with anybody. [147]
•3f * * -5^ *

Trial Examiner: In the laborers' register, if a

man's number came up and he wasn't in the hall,

what was your practice, what is your practice?

The Witness: He would miss his number, he

would have to come and reregister again. He
would lose his turn on the list. He might be work-

ing someplace. [152]

Trial Examiner: All right. But if he wasn't

working someplace and if he wasn't in the hall,

what would you do?

The Witness: We give him a new number.

Trial Examiner: You give him a new number?

The Witness: That is correct.

Trial Examiner: Would he go to the bottom of

the list?

The Witness: Yes, he would go down below the

last one who registered before, previous to him

coming back in.

Trial Examiner: Do I understand, to get a job

you had to be in the hall at the time your number

came up? Is that correct?

The Witness: That is correct.

Trial Examiner: There is no provision for call-

ing a man or getting in touch mth him?

The Witness: On a special, if some particular

man was called for, we would get him, even go

out and look for him, that is, if some contractor
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wanted some special man whose name was on the

list, irrespective of what nmnber he had.

Trial Examiner: But supposing a man isn't spe-

cifically asked for, a call comes in for a man, does

he have to be in the hall to be dispatched^

The Witness: Oh, yes, because they want him

right at that particular time, that is, there is no,

generally they want him inside of the quickest

possible transportation to the job. [153]

Trial Examiner: Do I understand also that in

those circumstances, if a man who is not a mem-
ber is in the hall and a man who is a member is

in the hall, that the man who is a member mil

be dispatched?

The Witness: He will have the first prefer-

ence, that is correct.

Q. Is that also true of the hod carriers' win-

dow?

A. No. We have no list for them, it is a matter

of just finding who is out or which one they will

fit in with. The hod carriers have a separate

setup entirely.

Trial Examiner: All right, sir.

Cross Examination

Q. (By Mr. eTackson) : Mr. Buchanan, I believe

you said you had been there 34 years, that is, up

until this past year, as the secretary and business

agent of Local 242. A. That is correct.

Q. And this hiring hall procedure which you

have described with reference to dispatching men.
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liow long has that existed there at the Local 242

Union?

A. Way back into 1924, '25, we had that same

system.

Q. And that same system has heen carried on

through all these years?

A. lias been carried on through all these years.

Q. And you have had the same system with

reference to dispatcliing hod carriers? [154]

A. That is correct.

Q. And the same is true of dispatching labor-

ers ? A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Buchanan, Mr. Boyd asked you about

Mr. Lewis. I believe you said that Mr. Lewis had

become a member, I think the record shows here

he became a member in 1943, I believe the record

shows that is when he first became a member, and

then in October of 1943 Lewis was suspended from

membership for non-payment of dues. To refresh

your recollection, would that be al30ut right?

A. That would be fairly close, yes.

Q, Then later on in 1947 it shows that in Janu-

ary, January 16, 1947, he again became a member

and then was a member until October of 1949

when he was again suspended for non-payment of

dues. Would that be correct?

A. That is approximate, that is, I couldn't say

the exact years, but that is about the time, yes, two

years' time, yes.

Q. Between 1949 and 1956 v/hen you have testi-

fied, in May of 1956, when Mr. Boyd asked you
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concerning these questions, during that period, I

understand, he was not a member of Local 242 '^

A. That is correct.

Q. And had not been dispatched out of the hall

on any work here in Seattle "? A. No, no, sir.

Q. Then sometime in 1956 he showed up at the

hall and was looking for work, is that my imder-

standing?

A. Yes, I believe it was in early '56, yes.

Q. And he was classified at that timci as a

suspended member "? A. That is right.

Q. "IVlien your members of the union fail to

pay their dues, is that the method of penalizing the

member, is to suspend him for non-payment of

dues?

A. Yes, after ninety days we suspend them for

non-payment of dues.

Q'. That is the practice that is followed with

all the members, is that correct?

A. That is right.

Trial Examiner: In the dispatch of work, if a

man is suspended, is he treated as a member or

non-member ?

The Witness: Say, if he was 90 days in arrears

and he came in and promised to straighten up, he

w^ould be.

Trial Examiner: I mean a man who is sus-

pended, period, he has promised nothing, is ho

treated as a member or a non-member?

The Witness: If he had been a member, we

would treat him as a member; as long as he was
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a well qualified workman, we would dispatch him

out.

Trial Examiner: Even though he was sus-

pended "I

The Witness: Yes.

Trial Examiner: But suppose there was a mem-

ber in good standing [156] in the hall when the

job comes uj), which one would you dispatch?

The Witness: In that case, we would dispatch

the one we thought was best qualified, who Vv^ould

fi.ll the bill, mthout distinction as to the member

or non-member.

Trial Examiner: Is there a distinction between

a member and a non-member, then?

The Witness: Yes. Well, the suspended mem-
bers, some of them we know, if they have been in

there, we know from a particular time; a non-

member, we don't know what they are or what their

qualifications are. [157]
*****

Trial Examiner: The question is, however,

whether Mr. Lewis had l)een there before May 9,

1956.

The Witness: Oh, yes, he had been there be-

fore May 9, that is correct.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : But there had been no

work to dispatch him on, even if he had asked for

it, is that correct? A. That is correct.

Q. Then, as I understand, this work for Mr.

Nielsen, that was a job for a subcontractor who



132 National Labor Relations Board vs.

(Testimony of Robert Buchanan.)

was in the moving business? Is that my luider-

standing"? [158]

A. That was a subcontract from a subcontrac-

tor, a subcontract from the Iverson Wrecking

Company. They had the original contract.

Q. He had gotten a job with Mr. Nielsen in

moving work?

A. Helping to jack the house up.

Q. They had gotten a job over on the Team-

sters' Hall?

A. Teamsters' Hall, that is right, yes.

Q. Then I believe, as I imderstand you to say,

on May 17, then, Mr. Lewis came in, and I believe

on the 16th he had come down and registered that

he wanted to be a hod carrier?

A. That is right.

Q. In other words, he didn't want to go out on

a classification as a common laborer?

A. He didn't want to go on the list, he wanted

to go on the mental list, whatever you would call

it, or the hod carriers' list.

Q. To your knowledge, had he had hod carry-

ing experience? A. Oh, yes.

Q. So he vvas given the privilege of working

out as a hod carrier and he was dispatched out,

is that correct?

A. Yes; that was a few days later.

Q. Is it essential that the men determine

whether they want to be on the common laborer

list down there or whether they want to be on the

hod carrier list?
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A. The}^ determine that themselves, they have

to stay on one. [159]

Q. They can't move back and forth from one

to the other? A. Yes, that is right.

Q. Pollovdng the May 17—or let me ask you

this, hov\^ long did you remain there then as the

financial secretary ?

A. About six weeks, five or six weeks.

Q, Vvlien did you leave?

A. I left the last week in Jime.

Q. The last week in June? A. Yes.

Q. That is, you retired at that time, as I imder-

stand it? A. Yes.

Q. I believe Mr. AUman took over your work

as the financial secretary?

A. That is corrrect.

Q. And up until the time you left was Mr.

Lewis being dispatched out when work was avail-

able? A. I understand he was, yes.

Q. Let me ask you, Mr. Buchanan, Mr. Boyd

asked you, following this dispatch work or the dis-

patching of Mr. Lewis on or about May 17. After

that work was completed he came back, I believe

you said he came back into the hall and you had

some conversation with him. I would like to ask

you this, did you have some conversation with him

as to his request to become a member again? Do
you remember that?

A. Yes, he said he would like to ])ecome a mem-

ber again. [160]

Q. Is that when you had this discussion regard-
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ing the fact that he had filed this charge against the

union and before he could become a member, why,

he would have to withdraw the charge 1

A. That is correct.

* •«• -jt * *

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Let me ask you this,

Mr. Buchanan. Where you have disputes with sus-

pended members regarding their going to work, is

there certain grievance procedure that [161] you

have set up within the luiion that the member or

former member must follow in order to be rein-

stated?

A. Yes, that is, if there is some question it is

referred to the executive board, who are members

of the organization.

Q. If a person has a suit pending or charge

pending against the union, what is the union's con-

sideration with reference to that particular mem-
ber? Do they have to mthdraw the charges before

they can be considered for membership?

A. That is the practice, yes.

Trial Examiner: I will sustain the objection.

Q. (By Mr, Jackson) : Mr. Buchanan, did you

have any discussion with Mr. Lewis on or about

May 17, 1956, after he had been [162] dispatched

to his first job, when he came back into the union

hall, about his becoming a member of the union?

A. That is correct, yes.

0. Would you tell us now just exactly what was

said between you and Mr. Lewis with respect to his
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becoming a member and what, if anything, he may
have to do in order to become a member of the

union again?

A. Yes. I believe I told him what he ought to do

is withdraw his charges and come down and take

his turn along with the rest of the hod carriers.

Q. Do you remember what he said about with-

drawing the charges that he had filed against the

union at that time?
-?e * -K- * *

A. I believe he said he would have to consult

someone about it first before he would do it.

* * -Sf * *

Q. To your knowledge, the charges were never

withdrawn by Mr. Lewis?

A. That is correct. [163]
* 4e- * * -x-

Redirect Examination *****
Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Before this problem arose

with Cyrus Lewis, he was not being given a number

down there at the union hall this year, was he?

A. No, he was on the different, he was, preferred

to go as a hod carrier, which had no number, that

is right, but he had that preference to go on the

list, I had Mr. Allman tell me.
* * ^ * -K-

Q. To l3e clear on one other thing, at the time

you talked with Cyrus after he had the Landrus

job and came back there, did you not say to him at

that time, ^'You realize this suit [167] won't be up

for three months"? A. That is right.
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Q. "It will be two or three months before a

hearing. If you want to work out of here, you with-

draw the suit"? A. Yes, I told him that.

Q. And that didn't have any relation at all to

his membership, it had relation to him withdrawing

the suit, didn't it?

A. Also becoming a member, if he would with-

draw the suit he would become a member, too.

Q. In other words, he had to become a member

before he could be dispatched out of there without

discrimination? A, No, no, no.

Q. Well, under what circumstances? He would

fall into the non-membership group, wouldn't he?

A. Group, and say they would call for hod car-

riers, Mr. Lewis would be dispatched along with the

rest, as long as he, as long as the employment was

available, yes, V7e would have dispatched Mr. Tjewis

out.

Q. He would be dispatched after the members

had been dispatched out? A. That is correct.

Q. He wonld be dispatched vath the non-

members? A. Yes.

Trial Examiner: As a hod carrier?

The Witness: Yes. [168]

Trial Examiner: Do I understand you dispatch

members before you dispatch non-members in the

hod carrier classification?

The Witness: That is, we dispatch the members

first, we dispatch the members first because they

have preference, we might as well make the record

straight.
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Trial Examiner: Is there anything else of this

witness ?

Recross Examination

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : During the time that

you were there between May and June 30, in the

jobs Mr. Lewis was dispatched to, were any of these

emi^loyers hy whom he was employed members of

the A.G-.C.?

A. 'No, they were all of them small subcontrac-

tors, none of them members of the A.G.C.

Q. Were any of them doing business in inter-

state commerce "?

A. No, subcontractors, plasterers and bricklay-

ers, very few of them doing interstate commerce

work. [169]
* 45- * * *

Further Redirect Examination

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : First, Mr. Jackson referred

to contractors to w^hom Lewis was referred. Now, in

your testimony up to this point you have identified

only one job to which he was referred, namely the

job with Landrus out at the Sand Point Country

Club district. Did you know that at a later date he

was sent out on another job?

A. Yes, I believe he was sent out for—-

—

Q. And that was to work for Chris Berg,

wasn't it?

A. I don't know whether it was for Chris Berg

—was it for Chris Berg? That is what I couldn't

say. Mr. Allman would know the answer, who he

was dispatched to.
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Q. Isn't it a fact that you know that Chris Berg

is a member of the Seattle A.G.C. and does do work

in Alaska?

A. That is what I meant when I said people who

go to work in Alaska, Mr. Berg does do work in

Alaska. [171] .

* » ^ » )«•

ALBERT NIELSEN
a witness called l^y and on behalf of General Coun-

sel, being first duly sworn, was examined and testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Will you state your name

and your occupation? A. Albert Nielsen.

Q. And your occupation?

A. Housemover.

Q. On May 9th of this year were you engaged in

any housemoving work ? A. Yes, I was.

Q. Where?
A. Well, as I recall, at the Teamsters' building.

I don't have the correct address on it. [180]
* * -jt * *

Q. In the course of that day, Mr. Nielsen, did

you employ any persons to perform common labor?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And how many?
A. There was two boys that came along who

wanted to work, and at that time I needed two men
for the rest of the afternoon, and those boys hit me
for work, they asked me if I had a job for them, so

I put them to work.
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Q. Do you recognize Cyrus Lewis as being either

of those two men'?

A. That is one of them, yes.

Q. What transpired in the latter part of the aft-

ernoon with respect to their employment!

A. Well, along towards evening, I would say

about 3:30' or a quarter to four, the union man
came along and told me to let them go because they

weren't union men.

Mr. Boyd : Would you read the answer, Mr. Re-

porter. I didn't hear it plainly. [181]

(Answer read.)

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : What was the full state-

ment as to what would happen if you didn't let

them go?

A. I just don't remember. That has been quite

awhile ago.

Q. Specifically, was there any reference to pick-

eting?

A. Yes, he said if I didn't keep straight union

men on the job they would throw a union picket

line on it, which we did, we kept union men on.

Q. I direct your attention to Bob Buchanan

over here, the man seated the farthest there, he is

to the right. Do you recognize him as the man who

came over and talked to you that day?

A. Yes, it was Mr. Buchanan who came over and

talked to me.

Q. Was it as a consequence of that that you let

Lewis go that day?

A. Yes, I did. And furthermore, I had just
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plaimed on keeping them on that particular job,

just that time, because we just needed the men for

that half a day.

Q. Did you find Lewis a satisfactory workman?

A. Yes, I did. [182]
* -X- -X- * »

Trial Examiner: What was the scheduled quit-

ting time?

The Witness: At 4:30, we quit at 4:30. The rest

of the ])oys went home, so I let these fellows go,

paid them and let them go. [183]
* * * * -x-

Cross Examination * * ^ * *

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : And he never sought

you out for any further employment?

A. No, not that I can recall anyway. [185]
* -x- * * *

Trial Examiner: Are you a member of any

association of contractors?

The Witness: No. [187]
* * * * -jt

Mr. Boyd: We are in no position to prove that

the operations of this employer affected commerce.

This is adduced as the first incident in a chain of

events that we are about to develop from other wit-

nesses.

Trial Examiner: All right, now, that I may un-

derstand you, are you contending that this was dis-

crimination under the terms of this contract?

Mr. Boyd: It was not discrimination imder the

terms of the contract, although it is discrimination.
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it was not discrimination that was prohibited by the

Taft-Hartley Act because the employer's operations

don't affect commerce. [189]
*****

CYRUS LEWIS
a witness called by and on behalf of the General

Counsel, being first duly sworn, was examined and

testified as follows:

Direct Examination
* *

Q. (By Mr. Boyd): And where do you live?

A. I live at 1811 East Madison.

Q. You are colored? A. Yes.

Q. What is your age? A. Fifty-two.

Q. What was the extent of your education?

A. About second grade.

Trial Examiner: Of grammer school?

The Witness : Second grade, grammar school.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : What is your occupation?

A. Hod carrier.

Q. For how many years?

A. Oh, about 20 years. [204]
*****

Q. Did you get any work in April through the

union hall? A. No.

Q. Did you go there for work? A. Yes.

Q. How frequently did you go there?

A. I went there two or three times a week.

Q. On each occasion when you got there what

did you do when you went to the union hall?

A. I told them I was inquiring for work. [207]
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Q. What response did you gef?

A. They kept telling me there wasn't anything

and they weren't taking any members.

Trial Examiner: I didn't get the last. What did

you say?

The Witness : They weren't taking any members

in.

Trial Examiner: Did you make an application

for membership'?

The Witness: I tried to.

Mr. Boyd: I will state that. But before doing

so, let me pass to one other thing.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Up until the time when you

filed this charge on May 11, Cyrus, were you sent

to any work by the union? A. No.

Q. Between the period when you first started

looking for hod carrier work this spring and up to

the time when you filed the charges did you get any

hod carrier work? A. No.

Q. Did you from any other sources get any job

as a hod carrier? A. No. [208]
* * ^«- * *

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Mr. Lewis, how long was
your work with Landrus ?

A. Three days and a half.

Q. You say you went out on May 17?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you go to work that day? A. Yes.

Q. And then you worked the 18th, on Friday?
A. Yes.

Q. And the following Monday and Tuesday?
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A. Yes. [223]
* * * 4f *

Q. May 18 you went to the Union Hall. You
were working out on the Landrus job?

A. I mean, I am talking about, after I finished

the job. It must have been May 21 or May 22, be-

cause to the best of my recollection it was after he

finished the Landrus job when it first was men-

tioned to me about withdrawing the case.

Q. About withdrawing the case? A. Yes.

Q. But were you at that time talking about join-

ing the union or getting another job, when you went

to the union at that time, did you go at that time,

in May, for the purpose of getting another job or

for the purpose of joining the union? Which was

it? [231]
« * * * *

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Talking about your con-

versation on Jime 21, that was when Leo said to

you—first, you say on June 21 you said you were

talking about re-instating. Did you have any money

with which to re-instate? A. Yes.

Q. Where did you get that money?

A. Off of this job where I was working.

Q. Off the Berg job? A. That is right.

Q. Did you tender the money to Leo?

A. Yes. I walked up to the window and offered

to pay him some money and he wouldn't accept it.

Q. And his statement to you at that time was

what, now, so that we will be clear? [232]
« * * * »
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A. A¥lien I went off of the Berg job I went down

and tried to reinstate myself with the union, pay

some dues, and to the best of my recollection he

told me, he said, ''No, I am not going to take your

money until I get a statement from the Board that

you have withdrawn the case."

Trial Examiner: Tell me, how much money did

you have?

The Witness: I had $40 at that particular time.

Trial Examiner: Is that what you tendered to

him?

The Witness : I had $40, expecting to pay $37.50.

That is what the—that is what I learned, I mean

the new, the initiation fee was, or whatever—no one

had told me anything about what I had to pay,

which I had been trying to pay, no one had told

me what I had to pay, but from talking with differ-

ent hodcarriers I learned the fee was $37.50. That

is what T had the $40 in my pocket for.

Trial Examiner : Initiation fee ?

The Witness: Yes, to reinstate, and I felt like

I had once been a member and I just wanted to

reinstate or do whatever I could towards the right

thing, and I had $40 in my pocket at that particu-

lar time for that use, and I offered to pay it.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : You have been testifying

about June 21. Did you get any other work from the

union or through the union in the month of June?
A. Yes.

Q. Stop and think and tell me where you got

it, where you worked.
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A. Well, after I finished the Chris Berg job,

then the next job I got was working for Frodesen.

Q. When did you start on that work?

A. I started to work for Mr. Frodesen about

June 10.

Q. Let's see is we can assist your recollection.

I will hand you here a group of copies of your pay-

roll slips and direct your attention to the fact that

the last one was dated August 6, 1956, and the first

one was dated July 13, 1956, for 16 hours' work,

and that was for the week ending July 11. Does

that refresh your recollection as to when you started

working for Frodesen?

A. I started working for Frodesen on the 11th.

Q. If you had 16 hours, then, on the 11th, you

actually started on the 10th, didn't you, the 10th of

July? A. Yes.

Trial Examiner: How did you get that job?

The Witness : I got it through the union.

Trial Examiner: As a hodcarrier?

The Witness: Yes.

Trial Examiner: Who gave it to you?

The Witness: Leo.

Trial Examiner: Did you have any conversation

with him [234] at that time?

The Witness: No.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Is it clear in your recol-

lection now that your work with Frodesen started

on July 10? A. That is right.

Q. At the time you started out on that job,
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was anything in particular said to you by Leo at

thv time he gave you the referral?

A. No, not at all.

Q. Your payroll slips indicate that that work

continued from July 10 up to August 6?

A. That is right.

Q. August 6 being on a Monday?

A. That is right.

Q. Actually did you leave that project on that

day? A. No, I didn't.

Q. What did you do for the balance of that

day?

A. I got laid off of Frodesen's job at 12 o'clock

that Monday and I worked for Ruddy Valle.

Mr. Boyd: The name is Henrick Valle.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Is that correct, Henrick

Valle?

A. Yes. And I worked for him for one day

and a half.

Q. So you worked for him a half day on Mon-

day and a full day on the 7th of August?

A. That is right. [235]

Trial Examiner: Did you get that job through

the union?

The Witness: No.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : But in the course of the

time that you were working on that job did you
see any official there from the union? A. Yes.

Q. Who was it that you saw on that job?

A. I guess I am right about the name. I think
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it was Mr. Earl something. A little fellow, a short

fellow.

Q. Did he make any objection to your being,

working, on the Valle job without a dispatch?

A. No.

Q. Did you have any discussion with him about

that"? A. Yes; I told him about it.

Q. Having finished your work on this Frodesen

and Valle jobs on August 7, what did you do after

that?

A. After I finished that job I got laid off, and

then I went back to the Union Hall.

Q. And when did you go back?

A. I went back to the Union Hall on the 9th

—

on the 8th.

Q. You went back the day after you were laid

off the Valle job? A. On the 8th, yes.

Q. With whom did you talk?

A. I talked with Leo. [236]

Q. Do you remember what your conversation

with Leo was on this particular day, August 8?

A. On August 8 I went down and talked to

Leo and I told him I had finished that job and I

would like to get dispatched out, and I offered to

pay some money.

Q. And what did Leo say?

A. Leo told me, he said, "No, I am not going

to receive any money from you imtil I get a letter

from the big boys stating that you have dropped,

that the case has been dropped.''
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Trial Examiner: Did he indicate to you whom

he meant by ''the big boys''?

The Witness: No. He just said, "a letter from

the ])ig boys"; that is all he said to me.

Trial Examiner: All right.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : How soon after that, ac-

cording to your recollection, is it, Cyrus, that you

got further work?

A. Well, I got work pretty regularly then. The

next job I went on, if I recall, was a job down on

1208 First Avenue, if I recall.

Q. I will hand you here, for the purpose of

refreshing your recollection^ if it will do so, I will

show you this slip mth respect to work while

employed by Henry L. Mortensen. Looking at the

slip itself, do you recall that that is the slip that

you got with respect to this work that you were

doing at that time? A. Yes. [237]

Q. That shows a date indicating that you

worked there for a pay joeriod ending August 24.

Is tliat your recollection? A. Yes.

Q. During the time that you were working on

that job

Mr. Boyd: I withdraw that question.

Trial Examiner: Did you get this job through

Leo?

The Witness: Yes.

Trial Examiner: And it was a hodcarrier's job?

The Witness: Yes.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd): Before asking you about

anything that occurred on that job, let me direct



Mountain Pacific Chap, of A.G.C., et al, 14-9

(Testimony of Cyrus Lewis.)

your attention to the week preceding that, the

week before that. Did you have any contact with

the union representatives the week before that?

A. You mean did I go to the Union Hall?

Q. All right, did you go to the Union Hall^

A. Yes, I went to the Union Hall.

Q. What day in the week did you go down

there ?

A. I went to the Union Hall from the time I

finished the Prodesen job on the 6tli, I went back,

I mean on the 7th, I went liack on the 8th, and I

practically went every day imtil I got this job

here.

Q. Let me hand you, to bring the matter into

focus, let me hand you here a document, which for

identification will be marked General Counsers Ex-

hibit No. 6. [238]

Trial Examiner: Yes, 6, that is right.

(Thereupon the document above referred to

was marked Greneral Counsel's Exhibit No. 6

for identification.)

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Handing you this slip

marked General Counsel's Exhibit No. 6 for identi-

fication, can you state what that is?

A. When I was given this^

Q. (Interrupting) Were you given that piece

of paper? A. Yes.

Q. And by whom? A, Leo.

Q. You identify this as being what it is and

as being given to you by Leo? A. Yes.
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Mr. Boyd: We will offer General Counsel's

Exhibit No. 6 in evidence.

Mr. Jackson: What does it purport to be'?

Mr. Boyd: You have a copy of it there.

Mr. Jackson: We have no objection.

Trial Examiner: It is received.

(The document heretofore marked General

Counsel's Exhibit No. 6 for identification was

received in evidence.)

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Directing your attention

to this, now, it has a date entered on it of August

18, 1956, and by reference [239] to the calendar

August 18 fell on a Saturday. Keeping in mind

the date of August 18, on Saturday, do you recall

what took place on that day? A. Yes.

Q. Will you tell us about what took place on

that day"?

A. I Avent down to the Union Hall on August 18

to pay some dues, try to reinstate whatever they

would let me do, like I had been doing, and that

morning when I got there Leo—I walked up to

the window and told him what I was there for,

and he told me to come in the office. That was the

first time I ever tried to talk to him. I went in

the office and he went in the office and me and him
lit up a cigarette together, and he says, "I'll tell

you what I am going to do", he says, "I won't
take any money", he says, "but I am going to fix

you up a slip as good as a book from August 18

until September 18", and so he did. This is the
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slip. And he says, "You keep that until August

18 and we will see what happens.''

Trial Examiner: Until after August 18?

The Witness : Until after August 18, and we will

see what happens.

A. (Continuing) Then I taken it. I referred

to him again when I walked out, and I said, '^I

won't have to pay any money here on anything?

My business here is to pay some money." And he

said, "No, you won't have to pay a nickel."

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : Bid anything else occur

before you left? [240]

A. I and he shook hands. He shook hands

with me and I shook hands with him, and he said,

*^No hard feelings", and I said, "No hard feelings",

and I walked away.

Q. You quoted him a moment ago, ^'We will

wait until after August 18 and we will see what

happens"? A. I meant after September 18.

Q. Was there one other little thing that hap-

pened there? Was there something that happened

about a button?

A. Yes. I asked him to give me a work but-

ton, and he gave me one.

Trial Examiner : What kind of a button is that ?

The Witness: It's just a union button that

everybody wears around.

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : You say you got that slip

on August 18, which was on Saturday. In the

week that followed that you have testified that you

were working for this Mortensen in the week that
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ended August 24, is that right? A. Yes.

Q. You say the work was where?

x\. The work was at 1204 First Avenue.

Q. While you were working there did you have

any contact with any union officials?

A. Yes.

Q. With whom? A. Leo. [241]

Q. What took place?

A. Well, when I was working there Leo came

down on the job, him and some man. I don't

know who this man was, but it was some man with

him. And he called me in person and asked me
about, asked me had I been up and withdrawed

the case and what was I going to do about it, and

I told him, I said, "Well, I don't know." I said,

"I have called them up and tried to talk to them

about it and they told me that they wouldn't with-

draw it, that it was out of my hands at the time."

And so his purpose was, the -w^j I was understand-

ing it, he was trying to get me to say that I would

withdraw the case or withdraw the charge.

Q. You fix that as being sometime in that week
that ended on August 24? A. Yes.

Q. Did you have any further conversation with

any union official at any time about mthdrawing
the case? A. At another date, yes.

Q. Where were you working at that time?
A. I was working on the corner of Melrose

and Oliveway.

Q. Do you remember who you were working
for? A. I was working for Beck.
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Q. I will hand you here pay slips which indicate

that you worked for Lloyd E. Beck for a period

beginning September 19 through September 28,

1956. Is that about the time that you were work-

ing there, according to your own recollection?

A, Yes.

Q. You say you talked with Leo when you

were working on that job? A. Yes.

Q. Will you tell us now in detail what hap-

pened in that conversation?

A. Well, he came on the job and called me off

in person again and asked me had I tried to with-

draw this case, and I told him, I said, "Well, I

have called them up and talked to them", which I

hadn't, and he says—at the time I wanted to keep

working. I didn't know whether he was going to

pull me off the job or what. I stalled him off.

And at the time he says, "Well, to prove to me
that you have tried to withdraw the case or w^ant

to withdraw the case", he says, "will you sign a

paper stating that you want to mthdraw^ the case

or will withdraw the case?" and I told him, I says,

^^I mil tell you, when I talked to them they told

me it was out of my hands," and "I would rather

you would call uj) and talk to some officials up

there, my lawyer or somebody, some official up

there. There is nothing else T can do." So the

conversation led on from one word to the other, but

I guess then part of it was he was trying to get

me to sign a statement that I would withdraw the

case at that time.
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Mr. Jackson: Well

Mr. Boyd (interrupting): He is only reiterat-

ing what he [243] said.

Trial Examiner: I am going to strike this wit-

ness' supposition as to what Leo was trying to get

him to do. [244]
* * * *

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : You have in your testi-

mony here recalled that August 8, when you went

down to the Union Hall, you offered to pay dues,

and at that time Leo told you that he wouldn't

accept anything until he got a letter from the big

boys '? A. Yes.

Q. Do you recall that? A. Yes. [245]

Q. And you testified previously that on June

21, right after the Berg job, that you offered to

pay dues, and at that time he said that he wouldn't

accept them until he found out how the case came

out or what was going to be done with the case"?

A. That is right.

* -X- }«• -x- *

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : My question to you, Mr.

Lewis, was this, while previous to that time, while

before that time, there were incidents when you
offered to pay dues. At those previous [246] times

when you offered to pay dues, which was actually

back in before you filed the charge, when you were
working for Metropolitan Builders

A. Yes.

Q. (Continuing) was anything said at that

time about withdrawing the charges?
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A. No. There wasn't any charges at that time.

If I understand you right, back in the time I

worked for Metropolitan Builders, there wasn't

any charges then.

Q. Then when you got the Landrus job in May,

that is the first job they sent you out on?

A. Yes. [247]
*****

Cross Examination *****
Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : I see. You didn't call

Nielsen \x\) that night or the next day to see whether

or not he had any further work that he hadn't

told you about? A. No.

Q. I think you said that he asked you to call

him up that night or the following

A. (Interru]3ting) He did ask me, ])ut I didn't.

Q. Then on the 10th you say you didn't do any-

thing ?

A. To the best of my recollection I don't think

I did anything on that next day. [263]
*****

Q. Do you know, Mr. Lewis, during the month

of May, of any job prior to the time you filed this

charge? Do you know of any job that the union

could have sent you on that was available?

A. Yes.

Q. What job do you know that was available?

A. I don't know where the job was or who had

had jobs, but I know there was jobs they could

have sent me on.

Q. But you don't know the name of any em-
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ployer to whom tliey could have sent you on a job?

A. No, I don't; I don't know that, but^

Q. (Interrupting) That was my question, now.

A. Yes.

Q. You don't know the name of any employer

to whom the imion could have sent you during

the month of May up until the time you filed the

charge, is that correct?

A. You mean from the month of May up until

the time I filed [264] the charge?

Trial Examiner: No. Counsel means in the

month of May up until the time you filed the

charge, up to May 11, until May 11, do you

know of any employer that the union could have

sent you to that it didn't send you to.

The AYitness: No, I don't.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : During the month of

March or April, 1956 do you l^now the name of

any employer that the union could have sent you

to, during those months, for employment?

A. No. If it didn't, I would have went to work
myself, if they would have hired me.

Trial Examiner: You have answered the ques-

tion.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : If you had known
where you could have gotten a job during March
and April, 1956, you would have gone there to find

that job, wouldn't you? A. Yes.

Q. But you didn't know of any work that was
available where you could go and get a job during

March and April of 1956, is that correct?
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A. No. [265]
*****

Q. Do I understand, then, Mr. Lewis, you have

been working during, I believe, May, June, and

July, August, and down to the present time, you

have been working as a hodcarrier, is that my
understanding?

A. Yes, I think my first jol) w^as in May, if I

remember right.

Q. When you finish one jo])—strike that. [266]

Have all the jobs you have been getting since

May l)een obtained through the Union Hall, that

is. Local 2421 A. Yes.

Q, Have you gotten any jobs for yourself?

A. No.

Q. You haven't solicited any jobs for yourself,

is that correct? A. No.

Q. Have you been working during the month

of October?

A, Yes. To the best of my knowledge, if you

vv^ill give me time to think—^yes, I think I have.

Trial Examiner: On a jol3 out of the Union

Hall?

The Witness : Yes, it was a job out of the Union

Hall.

Trial Examiner: Have you worked the whole

month ?

The Witness: No. I worked for—well, I can't

think of the man's name, but I worked this month

because I finished this past Tuesday. I can't recall

his name, but I did work this month.



158 National Labor Relations Board vs.

(Testimony of Cyrus Lewis.)

Trial Examiner: The entire month?

The Witness : No. I think I worked eight days

for them, for this person.

Mr. Boyd: For the record, and to shorten it,

Mr. Lems would concur, I am sure, that since the

issuance of that slip on August 18 he does not

claim that he was discriminated against in the

dispatching of work. [267]

Trial Examiner: Wliat's more, you don't claim

it, you don't claim that he was discriminated

against?

Mr. Boyd: We do not claim that, either, that

there has been any discrimination, in fact, since

the issuance of the slip on August 18.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Have you had more

work since August 18 than you had before August

18? A. Yes.

Q. Has there been more work available in the

City of Seattle than prior to August 18?

A. I can't answer that.

Q. You wouldn't know that?

A. I wouldn't know that, no, sir.
»fr -36 * * *

Q. Mr. Lewis, during the month of July, 19e56,

do you know of any jobs that were open during the

month of July that the union could have sent you
on? [268]
^t * * * *

The Witness: I don't know.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson): During the month of
June do you know of any jobs that the union could



Mountain Pacific Chap, of A.G.C, et al, 159

(Testimony of Cyrus Lewis.)

have sent you on? A. No.

Q. During the month of August, down to August

18, when Mr. Alhnan gave you this slip that has

been referred to here, you know of any jobs in the

early part of August, between August 1 and August

18, that they could have sent you on?

A. I didn't know of any. But they sent me on

some.

Trial Examiner: Well, counsel is referring to

jobs they could have sent you on that they didn't

send you on. That is the question.

The Witness: I don't know.

Trial Examiner: If you don't know, as I said

before, you don't know.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Also in the month of

May, Mr. Lewis, May, 1956, do you know of any

jobs that the union could have sent you on during

the month of May that they didn't send you on?

A. No.

Trial Examiner: When did this Todd job come

up that you referred to, in what month?

The Witness: I think it was May 17.

Trial Examiner: All right.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : You say May 17. You
understand there was a job at Todd's. Is that my
imderstanding? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You don't know whether Todd's called for a

special hodcarrier on that job or not, do you?

A. No, sir.

Q. And you had no discussion with the union

about the Todd job? A. No. [270]
*****
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Mr. Boyd: And we say the system was the

causation. We [276] are unable to trace, for rem-

edy purposes, at this juncture we are unable to

trace what jobs he could have had, but we say the

system operated discriminatorily, therefore there

was a causation. [277]
* * -x- * *

Trial Examiner: All right, gentlemen, I am
prepared to pass on your motion to strike Mr.

Melsen's testimony. I am going to deny the mo-

tion. The testimony does not go to establishing

that N'ielsen discriminated against this witness

within the meaning of the Act. I am retaining the

testimony as evidence of a policy that the union

had toward this witness, as evidence of a discrim-

inatory policy toward him. That is the reason for

the retention of the testimony. [281]
* ^ ^ ^ ^

LEO ALLMAN
a witness called by and on behalf of the respond-

ent imion, was sworn and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Would you state your
name. A. My name is Leo Allman.

Q. And where do you Uve, Mr. Allman?
At 810 West McGraw Street.

What is your business?

I am financial secretary for Local 242.

Plow long have you held that job?
Since the last day of June this year.

Prior to that time what was your job?

A
Q
A
Q
A
Q



Mountain Pacific Chap, of A.G,C,^ et aL 161

(Testimony of Leo Allman.)

A. I was dispatclier and corresponding secre-

tary. [282]
* * * * -jf

Q. Are you acquainted with Mr. Cyrus Lewis?

A. Since this year, yes.

* -jf * ^ *

Q. What was the nature of this, how did you

make his acquaintance 1

A. He appeared at the office seeking work.

Q. Do you remember about when that was?

A. Well, it was early spring.

Q. Would that be about March?

A. Around March, I would say.

Q. And did you discuss with him what kind of

work he was looking for?

A. Well, he told me he was looking for a hod

carrying job. [283]
•jf * * * *

Q. When he first talked to you it was about

obtaining a job as a hod carrier?

A. Th^t is correct.

Q. What did you tell him at that time?

A. I told him that, if I remember correctly, at

that particular time there was no work.
*****

Q. Yes. You might explain the industry and

how it works as far as hod carriers are concerned,

what times of the year there is employment and

what times there isn't, if that is true.

Q. The only way I can explain it is this, as a

general rule in the winter you have so much rain,
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the ground is so wet, the moisture content is such

that you cannot excavate for basements. Conse-

quently your construction work, that is, new con-

struction, is practically at a standstill until the

ground dries up to where you can move equip-

ment in and get at your excavation. You have the

period of time after your excavation until your

stnicture is built. During that period of time

there [284] is always a slack time for plaster tend-

ers, brick tenders, imtil your new construction is

well on its way.

Trial Examiner: When is that"?'

The Witness: As a general rule, it is the last

part of May, first part of June. It takes approxi-

mately, it is approximately 60 days from the time

they get excavated, sometimes 60, sometimes 90,

until they can do brickwork or plaster.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Is it reasonable to say,

then, during the months of March and April up
until the middle of May the work for hod carriers

is very slacks A. That is correct, yes.
* ^ -x- •«• *

Q. Let's take a typical year in the course of the

month of March, 1956. How many men would you
have around the hall during a typical, average day
who were seeking work, men unemployed and seek-

ing work? [285]

A. Altogether, counting hod carriers and labor-

ers, during the month of March and pretty near any
pai-ticular year, you would have 75 to 80 men. That
is conservative.
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Q. In dispatching, would you dispatch both

laborers and hod carriers?

A. As a general rule.

Q. Would the men wait there— what is their

practice, they come there and wait aroimd the hall

seeking employment? A. That is right.

Q. And how long do they generally wait there

after arriving in the morning?

A. Well, the laborers, as a general rule, that is,

the construction laborers, as a general rule, will

stay there until approximately noon. The hod car-

riers generally stay there until 9 or 10 o'clock and

then they shove off.

Q. Following, then, you might just tell us in

your own words what your experience was with

Mr. Lewis with reference to your ability to place

him on any work and whether he was offered other

work than that of a hod carrier.

A. I offered Mr. Lems the opportunity of going

on the laborers' list for this reason

Trial Examiner : When was this ?

The Witness: Well, I don't recall whether, I be-

lieve we offered him the opportunity of going on

the laborers' list this spring, around in April, and

I know I offered him a job as [286] a laborer ap-

proximately a month ago down here for Austin

Construction Company.
* * * * 4^

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : He was seeking a job as

a hod carrier. Did you have unemployed hod car-

riers there in the hall during the month of March?



164 National Labor Relations Board vs.

(Testimony of Leo Allman.)

A. Oh, yes, that is correct.

Q. Did yon have them there during the month

of April '? A. That is correct.

Q. When he came in during the month of March

and April was there any work available as a hod

carrier that you could have [287] sent him to'?

A. No, sir.

Q. I believe you said in April you offered him a

jo]> as a laborer, and Avhat was his reaction when

you offered him a job as a laborer?

A. If I remember right, he told me he was a

hod carrier and he preferred to go out as a hod

carrier.

X- * -x- * -x-

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Mr. Allman, you told us

that you had offered Mr. Lems an opportunity to

go out and work as a laborer. Do the laborers have

a separate category in the union from the hod car-

riers? [288] A. That is correct.

Q. Do you have a separate list that you put the

laborers on who are seeking employment, as com-

pared to hod carriers?

A. You register the laborers; the hod carriers

you keep track of them in your head by the district

they live in, the length of time they have been out

of work.

Q. But you don't have any separate list for hod
carriers? A. No, sir.

Q. I believe Mr. Buchanan testified there were
about 70, you had about 70 hod carriers enrolled

there, or who worked out of the union.
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A. I would say in that vicinity, yes.

Q. And about 1,700 laborers. A. Correct.
* -5^ * * *

Q. Were there jobs as a laborer that you could

have sent him out on if he had wanted to go out as

a laborer? A. Yes.

Q. Up until the 11th of May 1956 were there

any hod carrier jobs available in the union that had

come up when he came down, any particular day

that he had come down there [289] seeking work,

were there any hod carrier jobs available that you

could have sent him out on 1

A. I don't believe so, sir.

Trial Examiner: Actually, do you know?

The Witness: Well, as I said before, the work

was pretty scattered, contractors were calling their

own men back. As far as there was any work, no.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Do you have any recol-

lection now of any time diiring March and April

and up to the 11th of May that there were any hod

carrier jobs available in the union office on any one

of those mornings that Mr. Lewis came in seeking

work as a hod carrier? A. No, there wasn't.

Trial Examiner : Did you send any people out on

those days?

The Witness: Men that the contractors, just like

I stated before, the contractors were calling their

men back that had worked for them before, they

were calling up and wanting to know their ad-

dresses or phone numbers so they could call them

back to work.
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Trial Examiner: I am not referring to that. Did

you send any man out?

The Witness : No, sir.

Trial Examiner: Or did the union dispatch any

men to any jobs on any day when Mr. Lewis was in

the office in the period mentioned by counsel, look-

ing for a job as a hod carrier? [290]

The Witness : No, sir.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : That is up to May 11,

1956, is that correct? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I believe Mr. Lewis said that he was in the

office on May 9 seeking work. Was there any work

as a hod carrier, to your knowledge, in the union

office on May 9 ?

A. It's pretty hard to remember these dates

that far back.

Q. That was the day that he went out to, if you
will recall his testimony, that he went out and
worked for Mr. Nielsen, and got this job.

A. No, sir.

Q. Your answer is that there were no hod car-

rier jobs available that morning?
A. That is correct.

*****
Q. When did the hod carrier jobs in the union

office start opening up in 1956? When was the first

available jobs that you had for the hod carriers,

that you could send out?

A. Well, as far as I can remember, Mr. Lewis
went out on about the first job I had.

Trial Examiner: That isn't the question. Counsel
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asked you— perhaps you will come to the other

thing later— when did the jobs start opening up?

That is all he wants to know at the [291] present

time.

A. In May of this year.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : About what time?

A. I would say around the middle part of May.

Q. Do you remember about the first job that

opened up where you had a demand for hod car-

riers ?

A. Approximately the first— you are talking

about plaster jobs, I imagine?

Q. Which he would qualify for.

A. Well, I think the first job I got in was for a

man hj the name of Marius Landrus in the vicinity

of, I don't remember the exact address, it was, I

believe, on Ninety-fourth close to Sand Point Coun-

try Club.

Q. Was that a job Mr. Lewis was sent out on?

A. Yes, sir. [292]
* * ^ * *

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Was there anything

done by you or Mr. Buchanan there in the union

office, between the months of March and April and

up to May 11th A. No, sir.

Q. Just a minute, now. (Continuing) that in

any way prevented Mr. Cyrus Lewis from getting

a job from the union? [295]
* * * * -x-

A. No, sir. [296]
*****
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Q. I say, is there anything that you or Mr.

Buchanan did in the office there at the union during

those months, from March up until June 30, that

prevented Mr. Lewis from obtaining a job through

the union as a hod carrier?

A. Not that I know of, no, sir.

Q. You said jobs began opening up around the

15th or after the 15th of May, 1956, and then Mr.

Lewis was sent out on a job about May 17, 1956.

Following that, was he referred out to jobs as a hod

carrier when jobs were available in the union office?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Has he been referred to jobs as a hod carrier

since that time up to the present ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I believe you said that employers who used

hod carriers had called in to the union and asked

for special men. A. That is correct.

Q. What has been the practice of the union

when they ask for a man by name? [297]

A.. To send him out.

Q. Has that iiractice been in existence ever since

you have been there at the union ?

A. Ever since I have been in office, yes.
* * * * *

Q. Do you remember the testimony of Mr. Lewis
with respect to a job he testified to here this morn-
ing which he claimed had come in from Todd's
Shipyard, seeking a hod carrier?

A. Yes, I believe I do.

Q. Do you remember that occasion?
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A. I remember the occasion. I couldn't tell you

the date, by any means.

Q. Would you tell us what the job was for.

A. The job was for a boiler aboard ship.

Q. What was the call for?

A. I believe Mr. Buchanan took the order,

turned it over to me, and this was his words, he

said that a contractor had called up and said he had

four first-class hod carriers but they were all big,

to send him a small man. May I go on? [298]
* * % *

A. Down at the bottom of a boiler, especially

these boilers, there is a small opening, what they

call an acid hole. That is very small and it takes a

very small man to get inside there. He has to take

care of the bricklayer, after the bricklayer is inside,

he has to give him the material. I am not a very big

man myself, and at this present time I don't think

that I could get in one of those holes. It takes a

man of not much over a hundred and fifty pounds,

or 155 pounds at the most, to be able to squeeze

through there.

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Then, when the call

came in, this was a morning that Mr. Lewis has tes-

tified that a Mr. Johnson was sent down when this

job came in from Todd's, to Todd's. Would you go

on and explain whether or not Mr, Lewis had asked

for the job and why you didn't give the job to Mr.

Lewis.

A. Well, I didn't give the job to Mr, Lewis for

this reason, that it took a small man to get into the
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boiler, as I stated before, and the contractor had

specified that he wanted a small man, as I already

stated, he had four men to take the material off of

the ship into the hold, he needed a small man in the

boiler to tend the bricklayers inside. That was the

reason for Mr. Johnson's appointment to that job.

Q. How large a man was Mr. Johnson ^

A. Do you want his height and description"?

Q. Well, yes, give us his description, his weight

and [299]

A. Well, I don't, Mr. Johnson is a man approx-

imately five foot seven or eight, I imagine he is, I

don't believe he would tip the scales at over 150

poimds at the most.

Q. That is, he is what you could call a small

man ?

A. He is what you would call a small, wiry man.

Q. As compared to Mr. Lewis, how do you clas-

sify Mr. Lewis?

A. Mr. Lewis would make two of him.

Trial Examiner: What do you estimate Mr.
Lewis' weight to be?
* * * * ^

The Witness: I would say he weighed around
225 pounds.

Trial Examiner: And you estimate his height
was what?

The Witness: Well, I know he is taller than
I am.

Trial Examiner: And you are what?
The Witness: I am six foot.
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Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Mr. Lewis has testified

that you came out looking for a hod carrier that

morning, out of the office looking for a hod carrier.

Is that the reason that you came out looking for a

hod carrier, you were looking for a small man?

A. That is correct.

Q. Then Johnson was dispatched to that job?

A. Yes, sir.

* -x- * * *

Trial Examiner: What was the reason you dis-

patched Mr. Johnson rather than Mr. Lewis ?

The Witness: The contractor had asked specifi-

cally for a small man to get through this acid hole

in the boiler.

Trial Examiner : And that was your reason ?

The Witness : That is correct.

* * * * *

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : Mr. Allman, Mr. Lewis

also stated that he had asked to join the union and

that you had—I believe he said he had asked to join

the union before he had filed the [301] charges and

then he also asked to join the luiion after he filed

the charges. Would you just tell us what the fact is

regarding that and the reason, whether or not there

is a reason why he wasn't permitted to be rein-

stated?

A. Well, yes, there is a reason. [302]
•K- * * % -j^-

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : When he first came in,

what month was it, to your knowledge, that he
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sought, asked you about joining the union, wanted

to pay some dues, as he has testified'?

A. The months, that is something I couldn't

answer.

Q. Well, approximately when was it?

Trial Examiner: Was it before the charge was

filed?

A. I don't know w^hether it was the last part of

April or in May.
**•?«• -Jf 3{-

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : What was said, if you

recall?

A. Mr. Lewis came in and wanted to rejoin the

organization and, if I remember right, I told him

that he would need his money to eat on, if I am
not mistaken.
* -x- * *

Q. Let me ask you this, were you taking any

new members in during this slack period?

A. No, sir, we didn't have enough work for the

—we didn't have any work. We had no work for

new men. [303]
•X- •X- * * *

Q. AVhen was the next time that you had any
conversation with Mr. Lewis about becoming a

member of the union? Was that after

A. It would be after the charges were filed. [304]

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : I asked you if you had
had any other discussions with Mr. Lewis about
joining the union and you said yes, about the time
that this slip was made out.
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A. On this date.

Q. On August 18. And what was your discussion

at that time?

A. Mr. Lewis came down and wanted to join the

organization. [305]
X- -X- * * -Jf

Q. And what was said^ what happened then,

what was said 1>etween you and him ?

A. I asked him if he would withdraw the

charges, that I would give him a card that was, that

would act as a, to show my good faith, I would give

him a card that would act as a book.

Q. And you gave him this slip?

A. That is correct.

Trial Examiner: Why would he need a book

from you, to work somewhere ?

The Witness: He seemed to want a union book.

You don't need a union book to work anyplace.
* * •«• -x- *

Trial Examiner: And what was your answer to

him when he asked you if he could join? That is

the question.

The Witness : I asked him if he would withdraw

the charges.

Trial Examiner: And what did he say?

The Witness: Well, that is quite a ways back.

It is pretty hard for me to remember. [307]
* * * * 4f

Cross Examination *****
'Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : You referred to the slack

period in the spring, when work was slack in the
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si)ring' luontlis of this year. May I restate the ques-

tion, then. Such work as you had available to dis-

patch men to in hod carrier jobs during the slack

months of this spring, where they were not being

called for specifically by name, was given to the

men who had full membership in your union, isn't

that true'?

A. I don't recall of any of them, any jobs com-

ing in at that time that wasn't being called for by

name, because the contractors were starting back to

work.

Q. The Todd job was not called for by name,

was it? A. Well, that was

Q. The Des Moines job wasn't being called for

by name, was it? [319]

A. No, sir, not those two.
* * -je- *

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : But nevertheless, those

jol)s that you referred to in your testimony, the hod

carriers were not called for by name, were they.

A. Which particular jo])s was that?

Q, Where you sent a man to the telephone build-

ing at Des Moines and where you sent a man to the

Todd Shipyard.

A. The transportation facilities enters into who
went to Des Moines. And the size of the—

—

Q. (Interrupting) It is a matter of getting on a

pul)lic bus, isn't it, to go to Des Moines?

A. How long does it take to go to Des Moines?

Isn't it an hour and a half? [320]
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Redirect Examination

Q. (By Mr. Jackson) : In sending men out to

suburban areas, a lot depends on when the buses

run, isn't that correct? A. That is correct.

Q. And the ol3Ject is, when a man is dispatched

in the morning, is to get him out there ?

A. That is right.

Q. Is that correct?

A. That is our obligation.

Q. And it is a matter of dispatching the man
that can get there the quickest?

A. That is correct.

Trial Examiner: Are you aware of any require-

ment of your union which requires you to give pref-

erence in dispatch to a member of the imion over

any non-member? [322]
* -jt * * *

The Witness: May I answer it in my owm
words?

Trial Examiner: Yes.

The Witness: In this respect, in your oath of

obligation, it states in your oath of obligation that

you will secure employment for union people above

all others, I believe.

Trial Examiner: Were you complying with that

obligation during the time that Lewis was applying

for jobs?

The Witness: How do you mean?
Trial Examiner: Were you complying with this

obligation that is imposed upon you?
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The Witness: It's the international constitution

and you have no choice but to

Mr. Boyd : That is to say, you had no choice but

to comply with the requirements of the interna-

tional constitution ?

The Witness: Well, if you are going to be an

official of the organization, you have to comply with

the international constitution.

Trial Examiner: Let me ask you this, then. At

any time when Mr. Lewis was in the office applying

for a job, for dispatch, did you ever on any occasion

dispatch a member in preference to him because

Lewis was a non-member? [323]

The Witness: No, sir.

Trial Examiner: Did you have any occasion to

do that?

The Witness: No, sir, not as I can recall. [324]
*****

Recross Examination * * * ^- ^-

Q. (By Mr. Boyd) : But you did follow the past

practice of the union of dispatching first your full

members to such work as was available?

A. I followed the practice of dispatching the

first man in, that is, the first man off of, out of work
was the first man out.

Trial Examiner: Hov/ever, what do you mean by
"the first man"? Do you mean the first member or

do you mean the first individual, irrespective of

whether he was a member?
The Witness: I mean the first hod carrier out of

a job was the first man out, to go to work.



Mountain Pacific Chap, of A,G£,y et al, 177

(Testimony of Leo AUman.)

Trial Examiner: Well, weren't you following the

international's constitution

?

The Witness: What do you mean^

Trial Examiner: Doesn't the international con-

stitution require you to give preference to a mem-

l)er, in dispatching him?

The Witness: I think that—I didn't say that I

was putting out members l>efore Mr. Lems. I said

that they were all taking their turn.

Trial Examiner: Whether or not they were

members ?

The Witness: If I remember correctly, there

was only one other man around there who was

working as a hod carrier, that [327] was not a

member.

Trial Examiner: But my question is, were they

taking their turns whether or not they were mem-
bers or were they taking their turn as members and

after you dispatched them, then you would send out

the non-members.? Which was it?

The Witness: They were taking their turn,

period. [328]
* 4f -X- -x- -x-

Mr. Jackson: I think you said, though, ^^ Didn't

you know that during the months of May and June

we had one of the driest summers up here that we

have had for some period of time?" That, in sub-

stance, was what you said.

Trial Examiner: I was addressing myself to the

heat, sir.

Mr. Jackson: That is the reason, as I say, all I
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am trying to do is clarify it, if your Honor has

tliat in mind, because June was a wet month here,

and I submit, if June was a wet month, it would

have some bearing on the hod carriers that would

])e working.

Trial Examiner: At the present time there is no

evidence in the record either way because the wit-

ness, in effect, didn't know. [329]
* * 4«- -X- ?{•

GENERAL COUNSEL'S EXHIBIT No. 4

Western Washington District Council, Interna-

tional Hod Carriers, Building and Common
Laborers of America—1956-1957-1958.

Agreement
X- * -x- * *

Territory and Work Covered

5. This Agreement shall cover all Building,

Heavy and Highway Construction in the following

fifteen counties of the State: Whatcom, Skagit,

Snohomish, King, Pierce, Thurston, Lewis, Pacific,

Grays Harbor, Clallam, Jefferson, Mason, Kitsap,

Island and San Juan.

Recruitment of Employers
6. To maintain employment, to preserve work-

able labor relations, to proceed with private and
public work, the following accepted prevailing

practices shall continue to prevail in the hiring of

workmen

:

(a) The recruitment of employees shall be the
responsibility of the Union and it shall maintain
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offices or other designated facilities for the conven-

ience of the Employers when in need of emx^loyees

and for workmen when in search of employment.

(b) The Employers will call upon the Local

Union in whose territory the work is to l^e accom-

plished to furnish qualified workmen in the classifi-

cations herein contained.

(c) Should a shortage of workmen exist and the

Employer has placed orders for men with the

Union, orally or written, and they cannot be sup-

plied by the Union within forty-eight (48) hours,

Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excluded, the

Employer may procure workmen from other

sources.

(d) Either party to this Agreement shall have

the right to reopen negotiations pertaining to Union

security by giving the other party thirty (30) days

written notice, when there is reason to believe that

the laws pertaining thereto ha;ve been changed by

Congressional Amendments, Court Decisions, or

governmental regulations.
^ •» * * -x-

34. For the good of the industry both parties

pledge their immediate cooperation to eliminate any

of the above mentioned possibilities and the follow-

ing procedure is outlined for that purpose

:

(a) In the event that a dispute arising on the job

cannot be satisfactorily adjusted on the job be-

tween the Local or Locals involved and the Em-
ployer or his Representative, the same shall be re-

ferred to the Business Representative of the Dis-



180 National Labor Relations Board vs.

General Coimsers Exliibit No. 4—(Continued)

trict Council and the Manager of the Chapter of

the Associated General Contractors of America,

Inc., in whose territory or under whose jurisdiction

the dispute arises.

(1)) Should the Business Representative of the

District Coimcil and the Manager of the Chapter in

whose territory or under whose jurisdiction the dis-

pute arises fail to etfect a settlement, they shall

refer same to a joint arbitration committee consist-

ing of two members designated 1>y the Employer,

two members of the District Council. Should these

four fail to reach an agreement, a fifth representa-

tive shall be chosen by them. Any decision of the

Board shall be within the scope and terms of this

Agreement. Decisions by this Board shall be ren-

dered within twenty (20) days after the grievance

is submitted to them.

(c) The parties hereby agree that such decision

of the Joint Arbitration Board shall be final and
binding upon both parties.

Schedule A
The Wage Rates in Schedule Below Shall Become

Effective January 1, 1956, and Shall Remain in

Effc^ct Until December 31, 1957.*****
Mortarmen and Hod Carriers 2.67 2.81*****
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Certificate

Tliis is to certify that the attached proceedings

before the ISTational Labor Relations Board for the

19th Region in the matter of: Moimtain Pacific

Chapter, Seattle and Tacoma Chapters, Associated

General Contractors of America, Inc., and Inter-

national Hod Carriers, Building and Common La-

])orers Union, Local No. 242, AFL-CIO, and West-

ern Washington District Council, International Hod
Carriers, Building and Common Laborers of Amer-

ica, and Cyrus Lewis, Cases 19-CA-1374, 19-CB-424

and 19-CB-445, were had as therein appears, and

that this is the original transcript thereof for the

files of the Board.

ACME REPORTINC COMPANY,
Official Reporters,

/s/ By VERNON W. SELLER,
Field Reporter.




